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Vision

To provide knowledge and create public confidence that
insurance system can serve as a stable mechanism for
risk management and in preparing for sustainable future.

To regulate and
develop insurance
business to be
firmly strong.
To promote and
support insurance business
to have a role in strengthening
the country’s social and
economic system and
public good quality
of life.

Mission
To protect the
insurance right of
the public
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OIC Strategy: E.F.FE.C.T.
Proactively Educating the Public in order to increase market liquidity
and create trust and stability to the country’s insurance system

1. Improve the knowledge of the change-agents and multipliers in major areas of the country by creating
their understanding and the ability to create beneﬁts from insurance system and to quickly and widely
disseminate the knowledge to the general public and to support the growth and trust of the industry.
2. Drive the insurance business, government agencies and related private agencies for greater and quicker
efforts to develop the industry
3. To make the OIC well-known and to promote wider public acceptance on insurance business through
public relations activities, dissemination of information and other activities on a regular basis.

E

F

FE

Modify & Improve upon the Fundamentals

1. Develop administrative system and improve operating
procedures to support future development.
2. Improve and standardize human resource management
system including organizational restructuring and
communicating the new structure in a manner that is
easy to understand and supportive to quick adjustment
by the personnel. The scope of the improvement also
covers human resource planning and development of
career path management system.
3. Enhance the capability of personnel to support the OIC
missions.
4. Improve capability to transfer and communicate
organizational culture so that it can be educated,
understood and appreciated easily and quickly.

Foster Expansion of Strategic Alliance
Network to Promote Industry Growth
and Increase Market Fluidity

1. Improve bilateral cooperation within ASEAN
region through the exchange of knowledge
and driving for the harmonization of
regulatory rules and regulations in each of
these countries.
2. Develop policy-related recommendation on
shareholding structure and increase of foreign
shareholding proportion.
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Ensure the Proper Market Conduct to Enhance the Industry’s Credibility and Stability

1. Develop regulatory standard to meet international level to ensure that insurance companies have strong
and sound management.
2. Develop insurance principal laws to ensure that they are up to date, conducive to current social and
economic condition and supportive to the strengthening of insurance company’s management system.
3. Improve the capability of product approval process to promote the availability of diverse products that
are responsive to the risks and needs of the public.
4. Encourage the industry to adopt and apply the IFRS international ﬁnancial reporting system.
5. Improve insurance under the Road Accident Victim Protection Act with emphasis on adjustment of suminsured, marketing structure of compulsory auto insurance and the management of Road Accident Victim
Fund.
6. Improve capability of intermediary and dispute settlement system to ensure that it is standardized and
efﬁciently enforced.

C

T

Using the Advancement of Techniques and Information
Technology to Increase the Public Knowledge in Utilizing
Insurances to Manage Risk & Maintain Stability

1. Develop IT system for the OIC operation and to increase the role of IT
technology in the dissemination of knowledge.
2. Develop database system for use in the operation of the department
relating to dissemination of knowledge and public services.
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Roles and Functions

of The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)
The Insurance Commission Act has been effective since September 1, 2007. As a result, the Department
of Insurance has changed its status to become the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC), an independent state
agency and a juristic entity with a mission to regulate and develop insurance business and to protect the
insurance benefits and rights of the people, similar to the Bank of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and
Exchange Commission.
Under this Act, the structure of insurance business regulation is as follows:
The Insurance Commission is responsible for the formulation of policies for the supervision, promotion
and development of the insurance business. The Commission comprises the following members:
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Ex officio Chairman of the Insurance Commission
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance

Mr. Prasong Puntaneat

Ex officio Chairman of the Insurance Commission (Since May 10, 2018-Present)
Mr. Prasong Puntaneat graduated with a Ph. D. in Public
Administration from the Management for Development College,
Thaksin University and completed the National Defence Course
(Class 52), the National Defence College. He is knowledgeable and
experienced in finance, accounting and tax laws. Before his
appointment as the current Permanent Secretary of Finance, he
served in several senior positions in the Ministry of Finance such as
the Director-General of the Customs Department, Director-General
of the Revenue Department, and Director of the State Enterprise
Policy Office. Moreover, he also serves as chairman and director in
the board of several state enterprises and companies such as the
Chairman of the Airports of Thailand Plc., Chairman of the Thai
Military Bank Plc., and the director of the Bangchak Corp Plc. He is
also a devoted supporters of education and religion. He is the
member of the Maha Sarakham University Council by expertise and
the member of the Executive Board of the Mahamakuta Rajavidhalaya
Foundation Under the Royal Patronage (Layman)

Permanent Secretary, the Ministry of Finance

Dr. Somchai Sujjapongse

Ex officio Chairman of the Insurance Commission (Since October 1, 2015-May 1, 2018)
Dr. Somchai Sujjapongse graduated with a Ph.D. in economics
from the Ohio State University, U.S.A. and the Joint Private and
Government National Defence Course of the National Defence
College (Class 20). He is knowledgeable and experienced in
economics and fiscal service. Before his appointment to the position
of Permanent Secretary of Finance (October 1, 2015-April 30, 2018),
he served in many key positions in the Ministry of Finance such as
the Director-General of the Custom Department, the Director of the
Fiscal Policy Office and the Director of the State Enterprise Policy
Office.
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Ex officio member of the Insurance Commission
Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce

Mrs. Nuntawan Sakuntanaga

Ex officio member of the Insurance Commission (Since October 1, 2017-September 30, 2018)
Mrs. Nuntawan Sakuntanaga graduated with an M.B.A. in
Marketing and International Business from the University of Wisconsin
at Madison, USA and the National Defence Course (Class 49) of the
National Defence College. She is knowledgeable and experienced
in international trade. Before her appointment to the position of
Permanent Secretary of Commerce, she served in many key positions
in the Ministry of Commerce such as the Director-General of the
International Trade Negotiation, Director-General of the Export
Promotion Department, Director-General of the International Trade
Department, Director-General of the Intellectual Property Department
and Director-General of the Internal Trade Department.
She is currently serves as member of the board of several
agencies such as the Securities and Exchange Commission, an
independent and audit committee member of the PTT Plc. and
member of the Insurance Commission.

Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Commerce

Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa

Ex officio member of the Insurance Commission (Since October 1, 2016-September 30, 2017)
Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa graduated with a Master Degree
in Economics in Finance from Kasetsat University and Master of
Business Administration from Oklahoma City University, U.S.A. Before
being appointed the Permanent Secretary of Commerce (October
1, 2016-September 30, 2017), she served in various positions such
as the Minister Councilor (Commerce) in the Permanent Mission of
Thailand to the World Trade Organization-WTO in Geneva,
Switzerland, the Director of the Office of Multi-lateral Trade
Negotiation, Department of Trade Negotiation, Deputy DirectorGeneral of the Department of Intellectual Property, Deputy
Director-General of the Department of International Trade, an
Advisor to the Ministry of Commerce, former Director-General of
the Department of Internal Trade, the Ambassador Extraordinary,
the Permanent Mission of Thailand to the World Trade
Organization-WTO in Geneva, Switzerland.
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Governor of the Bank of Thailand

Dr. Veerathai Santiprabhob

Ex officio member of the Insurance Commission (Since October 1, 2015-Present)
Mr. Veerathai Santiprabhob graduated with a Ph.D. in Economics
from Harvard University, U.S.A. He has an extensive knowledge and
experience in economics, finance and banking. Before his appointment
as the Governor of the Bank of Thailand, he used to serve in senior
management positions in financial and capital market in both private
and government sector such as the Assistant Managing Director for
Business Customers Strategy at the Siam Commercial Bank Public
Company Limited, Deputy Manager for Organizational Strategy
Planning, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and an advisor to the
Thailand Development Research Institute.
He currently serves as member of the board of several agencies
such as the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Insurance
Commission, the State Enterprise Policy Board, etc.

Secretary-General of the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission

Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul

Ex officio member of the Insurance Commission (Since May 1, 2015-Present)
Mr. Rapee Sucharitakul graduated with a bachelor degree in
law from the University of Essex and master degree in law from the
University of Bristol, the United Kingdom. He has an extensive
expertise and a long experience in capital market and had served
in many private and capital market-related agencies such as the
director of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the director
of the Kasikornthai Bank Public Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Board of
Kasikornthai Securities Public Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Executive
Committee of Kasikorn Asset Co., Ltd., an advisor to the Managing
Director of Muang Thai Life Assurance Public Co., Ltd., an independent
director of the Big C Supermarket Public Co., Ltd., board member
of the Thai Institute of Directors, board member of the Federation
of Thai Capital Market Organizations and board member of the
Association of Investment Management Companies. Currently, he
also serves as a member of the State Enterprise Policy and
Supervisory Board, chairman of the Capital Market Supervisory Board
and member of the Insurance Commission.
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Secretary-General of the Office of the Consumer Protection Board

Pol.Maj.Gen Prasit Chalermvutisak

Ex officio member of the Insurance Commission (Since October 1, 2016-Present)
Pol. Maj. Gen. Prasit Chalermvutisak graduated with a bachelor
degree in laws from the Police Cadet Academy, Class 37, a
Barrister-at-law and Master of Laws and Public Administration. His
career experience includes serving in various positions such as the
Inspector Attached to the Office of the Prime Minister and the
Deputy Commander of the Metropolitan Police Headquarters, the
Royal Thai Police. He is currently serving in the capacity of an expert
in several agencies such as the Insurance Commission, Secretary of
the Law, Justice and Police Affairs Committee, the National
Legislative Assembly and a member of the Bank of Thailand’s Legal
Issues and Appeal Cases Reviewing Sub-committee

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

Annual Report 2017

113

Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise
Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Economics)

Dr. Tarisa Watanagase

(Since September 2, 2014-October 30, 2017)
Dr. Tarisa Watanagase received a Ph.D. in Economics from
Washington Universtiy, USA. And Economics (Honorary) from Keio
University, Japan, Senior Management Course, Harvard University,
USA, and a joint private and government national defence course,
the National Defence College of Thailand (Class 3). She is a
knowledgeable person and an expert in economics and finance.
She used to serve in many key positions in the Bank of Thailand
such as the Governor, the Deputy Governor for Financial Institution
Stability, Assistant Governor for Financial Market, Assistant Governor
for Financial Institution Policies and Assistant Governor for Financial
Institution Regulation and Audit.

Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Finance)

Mrs. Jotika Savanananda

(Since September 2, 2014-October 30, 2017)
Mrs. Jotika Savanananda graduated with a master degree in
Business Administration from Sasin Graduate School of Chulalongkorn
Unviersity, master degree in Psychology from the University of
San Francisco, U.S.A and a diploma from the National Defence
College of Thailand (Class 50). She is an expert in banking and finance
and is currently served as the chairman of the board of Talis Asset
Management Co., Ltd., the Chairman of the Audit Sub-Committee
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the director of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the director of the Central Pattana Public Co., Ltd.
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Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Business Administration)

Mr. Phaiboon Siripanoosatien

(Since September 2, 2014-October 30, 2017)
Mr. Phaiboon Siripanoosatien graduated with a master degree
in government from Sukhothai Thammathirat University and
completed the National Defence College course in 2012,
government administration and public law and public economic
management for senior executive course at the King Prajadhipok’s
Institute. He has extensive experience and expertise in business
administration and used to serve in important positions in several
government and private agencies such as a director of the Metro
Star Property Public Co., Ltd. and the Electricity Generating Public
Co., Ltd. Currently, he is the Chairman of the boards and director
by expertise of many agencies such as the Chairman of the
Executive and Investment Committee of the Eastern Water
Resources Development and Management Public Company Limited,
a director of Finansia Syrus Public Co., Ltd. and the Thai Volunteers
for National Defense Foundation, the Royal Thai Army.

Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Insurance)

Mr. Sompol Kiatphaibool

(Since October 30, 2017-Present)
Mr. Sompol Kiatphaibool received a master degree in Economics
from the Fairleigh Dickinson University, U.S.A, a diploma from the
National Defence College of Thailand in 1988 and an honorary
Ph. D. in Business Administration from Western University. He is an
expert in economics and insurance and had served in several
important positions in the Ministry of Commerce such as the
Permanent Secretary of Commerce, the Director-General of Internal
Trade Department, the Director-General of the Business Registration
Department and the Director-General of the Department of
Insurance. Currently, he serves in several key positions in the
government and private agencies such as the member of the
National Legislative Assembly, Chairman of an advisory board of
the Economic Deputy Prime Minister and the Chairman of the Board
of the Thai Vegetable Oil Public Co., Ltd.
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Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Law)

Mr. Achporn Charuchinda

(Since October 30, 2017-Present)
Mr. Achporn Charuchinda graduated with a bachelor degree
in law from Thammasat University and is a Thai Barrister at Law of
the Legal Training Institution, the Thai Bar Association. He also
completed from Class 46 of the National Defence College of
Thailand. He is a knowledgeable and an expert in law and used to
serve in many legal and political positions such as the
Secretary-General of the Council of State, an ordinary member of
the Constitutional Drafting Committee of the House of
Representatives and the Senate and member of the Financial
Institution Policies Committee. He currently serves as the member
of the Constitutional Drafting Committee, the Board of the Bank of
Thailand, the Board of Directors of the Tobacco Monopoly of
Thailand, the Board of PTTEP Public Co., Ltd. and the Economic
and Social Development Board.

Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Accountancy)

Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich

(Since October 30, 2017-Present)
Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich received a bachelor degree in
accounting from the Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy and
a diploma in auditing from Chulalongkorn University. He also
completed a course in Executive Management Program from Ivey
School of Business, University of Western Ontario, Canada and the
Leading Professional Services Firms Course from Harvard Business
School, U.S.A. He is a knowledgeable and has extensive experience
in accounting from more than 35 years and had served in key
positions in several private agencies such as Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Co., Ltd. and Price Waterhouse-Coopers
Consulting Thailand Co., Ltd. Currently, he is a certified auditor
(Thailand) and serves in management positions in several agencies
such as the President of the Federation of Thai Accounting
Professionals. Under the Royal Patronage, Director for accounting
expertise of the Market Dumping and Subsidy Scrutiny Committee
of the International Trade Department, the Ministry of Commerce
and member of the General Insurance Fund Board, the Ministry of
Finance.
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Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Business Administration)

Mr. Vichai Assarasakorn

(Since October 30, 2017-Present)
Mr. Vichai Assarasakorn graduated with a bachelor degree in
electrical engineering from New South Wales University, Australia
and completed the National Defence Course (Class 22), the National
Defence College. He is currently serving in the capacity of an expert
in several private and government agencies such as the PTT Plc.,
Krungthai Bank Plc., the Insurance Commission. He also devotes
himself to support the anti-corruption in private and government
sectors such as the National Anti-Corruption Organization (Thailand),
the Peace Keeping Council, the National Reform Council, Ministry
of Finance and the Anti-Money Laundering Office (AMLO), etc.

Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Economics)

Dr. Ampon Kittiampon

(Since October 30, 2017-Present)
Dr. Ampon Kittiampon graduated with Ph.D. in Applied
Economics from Clemson University, South Carolina, U.S.A., an
M.S. Economics from Northeastern University, Boston, U.S.A. and
the graduate of Class 45 of the National Defense College. He is an
experienced expert in economics who has served in many
government positions such as the Deputy Permanent Secretary of
Agriculture and Cooperatives, Secretary-General of the Office of
National Social and Economic Development Board, Secretary of the
Cabinet and the expert, attached to the Office of the Cabinet
Secretariat. Currently, he is serving as board member of many
agencies such as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Director
of the PTT Exploration and Production Public Company Limited,
Chairman of the Bank of Thailand Board, Chairman of Risk Oversight
Committee, the Bank of Thailand, member of the National
Legislative Assembly, Member of the National Peace Strategy
Steering Committee, member of the Insurance Commission,
Chairman of the National Social and Economic Development Board
and the Director of Prime Minister Policy Management Office.
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Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Economics)

Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa
(Since October 30, 2017-Present)

Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa graduated with a Master Degree
in Economics in Finance from Kasetsat University and Master of
Business Administration from Oklahoma City University, U.S.A. Before
being appointed the Permanent Secretary of Commerce (October 1,
2016-September 30, 2017), she served in various positions such as
the Minister Councilor (Commerce) in the Permanent Mission of
Thailand to the World Trade Organization-WTO in Geneva,
Switzerland, the Director of the Office of Multi-lateral Trade
Negotiation, Department of Trade Negotiation, Deputy DirectorGeneral of the Department of Intellectual Property, Deputy
Director-General of the Department of International Trade, an
Advisor to the Ministry of Commerce, former Director-General of
the Department of Internal Trade, the Ambassador Extraordinary,
the Permanent Mission of Thailand to the World Trade
Organization-WTO in Geneva, Switzerland.

Member of the Insurance Commission by Expertise (Finance)

Mr. Vachara Tuntariyanond

(Since October 30, 2017-Present)
Mr. Vachara Tuntariyanond graduated with a master degree in
Science in Management Administration from Northop University,
USA and completed several courses of the Institute of Directors
(IOD). He is knowledgeable and experienced in finance. He is
currently serving in the capacity of chairman, independent director
and advisor to several government and private agencies such as
the Eastern Polymer Group Plc., Thai Airways Plc., M Pictures
Entertainment Plc., and the Insurance Commission.
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Member of the Insurance Commission and Secretary
Secretary-General, Office of Insurance Commission

Dr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn
(Since October 31, 2015-Present)

Dr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn graduated with a Bachelor
of Laws (LL.B.Honor) from Thammasat University and the 36th Class
of the Thai Bar Association, a Master of Laws (LL.M) from Harvard
and Pennsylvania University under the Ananda Mahidol Scholarship
and S.J.D. from Pennsylvania University. He also received a diploma
from the National Defense College of Thailand (Class 2549) and the
16th Class of Higher Judicial Process Course, the 4th Higher Administrative
Judicial Administrator course, the “Judiciary for Democracy”, and
the Director Certification Program (DCP, 216/2016), Executive
Management with Business Development and Investment (Class 3)
and Capital Market Leadership Program (Class 24), Capital Market
Academy.
Before his appointment as the the Secretary General, Office
of Insurance Commission, Dr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn had
working experience as legal advisor to well-known law firms both
in Washington, D.C. and San Francisco, U.S.A. Upon returning to
Thailand, he began working in government service at the Department of Business Economics, Ministry of Commerce.
Later, he was royally appointed as a judge of the court of justice and served as the judge and secretary of the
Central Intellectual Property and International Trade Court, the spokesman of the Court of Justice, the judge and
secretary of the Civil Court and deputy secretary of the Supreme Court before assuming the position of the
Secretary-General of the Election Commission. He was later appointed as the Committee of the National Broadcasting
and Telecommunications Commission, the Committee of the Audit Council, the Chairman of the Budget and Fiscal
Disciplinary Board and the Chairman of the Anti-money Laundering Committee.
In academic area, he is a special lecturer in international trade laws and intellectual property law for bachelor
and master degree level at Chulalongkorn University, Thammasat University, Ramkhamhaeng University, Dhurakij
Pundit University and also the Institute of Legal Education of The Thai Bar. Moreover, he is also a thesis
examnination committee in bachelor and master degree level of several institutions.
Currently, he serves as members of several boards such as Deputy Chairman of the Non-Life Insurance Fund
Board, Deputy Chairman of the Non-Life Insurance Fund Board, member of the Financial Institution Policy Board
and member of the Standing Committee of the ASEAN Law Association (Thailand) and an advisor to the Sanya
Dharmasakti Foundation.
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OIC
Structural Chart
Insurance Commission
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Remuneration
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Budget Scrutiny
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Internal Audit
Department

Deputy Secretary-General,
Legal, Litigation and
Policyholder Protection

Deputy Secretary-General
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Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary
General
General
General
General
General
General

(Legal and Litigation)

(Policyholder
Protection)

(Administration)

(Examination)

(Insurance
Business Analysis)

(Insurance Intermediary
Examination)
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Litigation
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Legal
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Senior Executives

1 Dr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn
Secretary-General
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Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

2 Ms. Varawan Vechasut
Deputy Secretary-General
(Supervision)
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3 Mr. Tanupata Ratanapoonchai
Deputy Secretary-General
(Legal, Litigation and Policyholder
Protection)
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4 Mr. Chuchatr Pramoolpol
Deputy Secretary-General
(Examination)
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OIC
Senior Executives

5 Mr. Chanapon Mahavong 6 Mr. Surin Tanasupapol
Assistant Secretary General
(Promotion and Regional
Insurance)

Assistant Secretary General
(Organization Strategic)

7 Ms. Vasumadi Vasinondha
Assistant Secretary General
(Supervisory Standard
Development)

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

8 Mrs. Kanungnij Sujitjorn
Assistant Secretary General
(Insurance Products
Supervision)
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9 Mr. Somchai Punyaporn
Assistant Secretary General
(Investment Insurance
Supervision)
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10 Mr. Somprachoke Piyatanon
Assistant Secretary General
(Legal and Litigation)
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OIC
Senior Executives

11 Mr. Chaiyuth Mungsri

Assistant Secretary General
(Policyholder Protection)

12 Mr. Somkiet Panha

Assistant Secretary General
(Administration)

13 Mr. Banterng Phetchai
Assistant Secretary General
(Examination)

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

14 Ms. Chayanin Kerdpholngarm
Assistant Secretary General
(Insurance Business Analysis)
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15 Mr. Atthaphon Phibunthanaphatthana
Assistant Secretary General
(Insurance Intermediary Examination)
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Report on Operational Performance
and Development of Insurance System
in the 12 Month Period (Jan-Dec) of 2017
Of the Office of the Insurance Commission (OIC)

Thai Insurance Business Overview in the Period of 12 Months in 2017
Insurance Premium
January-December 2013-2017
800,000
Mil. Bht.

600,000
400,000
200,000
0
Life
Non-life
Total

2013
441,372
203,121
644,493

2014
498,752
205,247
703,999

2015
533,211
209,197
742,408

2016
567,974
209,743
777,717

2017
600,256
218,434
818,690

2016
6.52
0.26
4.76

2017
5.68
4.14
5.27

Insurance Business Growth Rate
January-December 2013-2017
15

%

12
9
6
3
0
Life
Non-life
Total

2013
13.02
13.14
13.06

2014
13.00
1.05
9.23

2015
6.91
1.92
5.46

Source : Office of Insurance Commission
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1. The Growth of Insurance Business
Premium
Income
(Mil.Bht)
GDP (QoQ%)
Total

Q1

3.20
193,080
4.58
Life Insurance 140,340
YoY%
6.06
Non-Life
52,740
Insurance
YoY%
0.85

Q2

2016
Q3

Q2

2017
Q3

Q4

Jan-Dec

Q1

Q4

Jan-Dec

3.60
188,940
4.66
137,727
6.11
51,213

3.10
183,567
5.73
135,433
8.36
48,134

3.00
212,130
4.17
154,474
5.73
57,656

3.30
777,717
4.76
567,974
6.52
209,743

3.30
204,011
5.66
148,910
6.11
55,101

3.70
201,262
6.52
148,139
7.56
53,123

4.30
193,875
5.62
142,241
5.03
51,634

4.00
219,542
3.49
160,966
4.20
58,576

3.90
818,690
5.27
600,256
5.68
218,434

0.97

(1.03)

0.19

0.26

4.48

3.73

7.27

1.60

4.14

The Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of Thailand in 2017 expanded by 3.9%, compared with 3.3% in 2016.
The factors attributed to the expansion included the recovery of world economy that helped drive Thailand’s
exports to increase by as much as 9.7% which was the highest in a 6 year period while retail business and
transport sector grew by 6.3% and 7.3%, respectively and hotel and tourism business expanded by 8.5% and
15.9%, respectively. The volume of sedan sales grew by 33.9%.
(Source: National Economic and Social Development Board).
In a period from January to December 2017, the gross direct premium income of Thai insurance industry
was 818,690 million Baht or an increase of 5.27%, compared with the same period in the previous year. The
total direct premium income of life insurance business was 600,256 million Baht or an increase of 5.68% and
that of the general insurance business was 218,434 million Baht or an increase of 4.14 %, compared with the
same period in the previous year.

2. Operational Results
In 2017, insurance business demonstrated a net profit of 68,240 million Baht, a decrease of 0.50%.
Operational earning of life insurance business was 699,152 million Baht or an increase of 5.67% while the total
expense was 644,668 million Baht or an increase of 7.25%. As a result, the total operational profit of life
insurance business was 54,483 million Baht or a decrease of 10.00% and the net profit (loss) of 55,977 million
Baht, an increase of 3.99%. Operational earning of non-life insurance business was 189,360 million Baht or an
increase of 3.62% while the total expense was 175,839 million Baht or an increase of 5.60%. As a result, the
total operational profit of life insurance business was 13,521 million Baht or a decrease of 16.71% and the net
profit (loss) of 12,263 million Baht, a decrease of 16.90%.
Types
Operational Earning
Expenditure
Operational Profit
Net Profit

Life Insurance
Non-life Insurance
Total
2017
% of
2017
% of
2017
% of
(Mil. Bht.)
Change
(Mil. Bht.)
Change
(Mil. Bht.)
Change
699,152
5.67
189,360
3.62
888,512
5.23
644,668
7.25
175,839
5.60
820,507
6.89
54,483
-10.00
13,521
-16.71
68,004
-11.42
55,977
3.99
12,263
-16.90
68,240
-0.50
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Operational Performance
and Development of Insurance System
in the 12 Month Period of 2017
Of the Office of the Insurance Commission (OIC)

The Office of the Insurance Commission has implemented the following
activities according
to the government and the Insurance Commission’s policies
rd
under the 3 Insurance Development Plan (2016-2020) with the main mission to
regulate and foster efficiency of insurance business in order to ensure that it
operates with efficiency, transparency, trustworthiness and ensure that the
policy benefit has been delivered to beneficiaries accurately and in timely
manner.

Strategy 1: Increase Potential of Insurance Industry
In order to ensure that insurance companies are stable, financially strong and operate their business with
high quality standard and trustworthy, the Office of Insurance Commission has implemented many activities
through 3 major strategies as follows.

1

Increasing capability of the operators in order to ensure that insurance companies
pose financial strength and capable of providing insurance and absorbing losses that may occur in
the future through the following activities.

RBC 2 QIS 2
The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has continuously developed the framework of risk-based capital
regulation in compliance with the standard set forth by the International Association of Insurance Supervisors
(IAIS) in order to set capital adequacy regulation that meets international standard and is proper for the condition
of insurance business in Thailand as well as to help strengthen financial position of insurance companies so that
they are able to compete in a liberalized market. This year, the OIC developed RBC 2 QIS 2 framework that
included the Consultation Paper and reporting form in accordance with the resolution of the RBC2 Scrutiny
Sub-Committee. Under this framework, life and non-life insurance companies are required to begin to conduct
the RBC 2 QIS 2 test in February 2017 and submit the result before June 2017. After that, the OIC has organized
a seminar to present and to clarify the RBC 2 QIS 2 test results for life and non-life insurance companies on
December 19 and 20 December, 2017 at the OIC Building. In the seminar, the OIC also gave the conclusions to
all aspects of the test that have been considered and reviewed under the RBC2-QIS2 framework by the RBC2
Scrutiny Sub-committee.
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Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA)
The OIC launched the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) with the goals to ensure that insurance
companies have good risk management system in place to support all types of changes that occur such as
technology, consumer behavior and threats that came with new types of financial innovations. In realizing the
importance of these changes, the OIC has applied many risk management measures such as the Enterprise Risk
Management or ERM as a framework for risk management by insurance companies in such areas as risk based
capital or development of risk management plan and stress test. Then on July 13, 2017 and November 29-30,
2017, the OIC organized the ORSA Industry Kick-off Seminar for life and non-life insurance business on the 2nd
floor of the OIC Building in order to clarify the concept and principles of Own Risk and Solvency Assessment
(ORSA) and to present the consultation paper that include details of the manual and ORSA process. The main
feature of ORSA process is the realization and participation and the company’s Board on the importance and
implementation of ORSA process. The company’s Board members must realize that ORSA is a useful process
for developing business strategies and making decisions that are based on the linkage between strategies, risk
management and capital management plan. Moreover, ORSA is also a measure that promotes communications
on the risks throughout the organization which could help strengthen company in the long run.

Overall Analysis of Thailand’s Insurance Industry
Nowadays, the financial system is widely linked and more complicated. The vulnerability of global economy
affects Thai economy and may create systematic risk to the stability of financial institutions and insurance
business. It is, therefore, imperative that there must be a process to follow up and evaluate the conditions and
risk factors that may affect company. The OIC also has a responsibility to follow up and evaluate the conditions
and risk factors that may affect company on a regular basis.
The OIC, therefore, required all life and non-life insurance companies to conduct a stress test during the
months of January to February 2017 on 3 assumed macro-economic risk scenarios with 3 levels of severity. The
results of the test showed that life and non-life insurance business in Thailand can absorb the impacts of
economic factors quite well in all given scenarios and have shown no sign that may become a cause or affect
the stability of insurance business in Thailand. All life insurance companies have the CAR ratio above the legally
required level in all tested scenarios while the non-life insurance companies were more affected by the
economic factors but still able to maintain the CAR at the legally required level in all tested scenarios as well.
In the stress test for 2017-2018, the OIC has developed 3 risk scenarios from the changing macro-economic
environment with 3 levels of severity in order to follow up and analyze the major risks that may affect Thailand’s
insurance business on a regular basis.

Insurance Regulatory Sandbox
As a regulatory agency, the OIC realizes the importance of creating ecosystem that is conducive to the
operation of business in digital age and in order to enable the public to enjoy the benefit and have better access
to insurance, it has launched a project to conduct a test on an innovation that uses technology to support the
provision of insurance services called the Insurance Regulatory Sandbox. Under this project, insurance companies
can test the new innovation that can actually be used to provide efficient services to the consumers under
limited environment and regulatory framework that may be made more flexible as deemed appropriate and
necessary whichever case may be.
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Based on the information on innovation test, conducted by regulatory agencies in foreign countries and
views of the industry, derived from hearings, the OIC has drafted the OIC Notification on Guideline for
Participation in the Insurance Regulatory Sandbox Project. According to this draft regulation, the participants that
want to participate must be life or non-life insurance companies or insurance agents or brokers. The start-ups
or those who are not in the insurance industry but wants to participate in the project must partner with insurance
company or corporate broker. Interested party may submit an application along with required documents to
the OIC from June 1, 2017 onward. The OIC has appointed IRS Screening Committee and the IRS working Group
to screen those who apply to participate in the Insurance Regulatory Sandbox both before the application and
while in the project. In 2017, there will be 5 insurance regulatory sandbox projects, 4 of which are related to
auto insurance and 1 is related to health insurance.

A Study on Insurance Business To Make Policy-Level Decision on Insurance Business
Structure
The Insurance Commission has announced a plan to relax restrictions on foreign ownership of Thai
insurance companies by allowing foreigners to hold more than 49% of voting shares or to comprise more than
half of the Board of Directors of the company in 2 steps of implementation.
Step 1: Allowing the non-Thai nationals to hold more than 49% of voting shares or to comprise more
than half of the Board of Directors of the company in a case that such relaxation would create financial strength
to the insurance company or to create stability to insurance business. The goal of the Insurance Commission is
to improve the business operational standard of insurance companies and to provide the opportunity for the
qualified non-Thai business operators to have more roles in the operation of insurance business in Thailand. It
is expected that the move will also create the transfer of technology and expertise to insurance business in
Thailand and to restructure the industry in order to improve effectiveness. The Ministry of Finance issued the
Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions or Time Line for Relaxation of Restrictions to
Allow Non-Thai Nationals to Hold More than 49% of Voting Shares And to Comprise More Than Half of the Board
of Directors of the company in a case that such relaxation would create financial strength to the insurance
company or to create stability to insurance business B.E. 2559, effective on January 18, 2017.
Step 2: Conducting a study on the possibility of allowing new players into the business by assessing
operational effectiveness of Thailand’s insurance system, the insurance needs of the people and adequacy in
number of insurance operators. The goal was to set a guideline for allowing new insurance operators to operate
insurance business in a way that insurance system can respond to the needs of the people and society. The
scheme may be implemented in a limited scope or fully liberalized with the goals of improving competition
and open the market for new players.
The Office of the Insurance Commission has hired a consulting firm to conduct a study on the current
condition of Thailand’s insurance business, insurance needs of the public and the gap inside insurance business
as well as the issuance of business license by regulatory agencies in foreign countries in order to use the
information derived for preparing the policy-level recommendations on issuance of new business license.

CEO Insurance Forum 2017
The Office of the Insurance Commission organized the CEO Insurance Forum 2017, presided by Mr. Visudhi
Srisuphan, Deputy Minister of Finance on April 19, 2017 at the Plaza Athenee Hotel, Bangkok. The event was
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held in order to strengthen relationship between the OIC and the insurance business and to provide a forum to
communicate direction and policies to develop insurance business and to exchange views and experience
between the OIC and business executives. This is also a part of the effort to drive insurance business to grow in
digital age and to promote digital innovation in insurance business through collective views of all related parties.
The seminar featured panel discussion on the following 4 topics.
1. The development of law and rules and regulations on insurance fraud risk management.
2. Insurance Regulatory Sandbox
3. The Application of Digital Technology in Insurance Business
4. Improvement of Market Conduct and Protection of Consumers’ Right
The seminar provided information for the OIC to improve the draft Life and Non-Life Insurance Law on
insurance fraud and the OIC Notification on Insurance Regulatory Sandbox. The OIC also applied the views and
experiences from the seminar to improve the effectiveness of operation and for the development of insurance
industry by taking into consideration the balance, flexibility, adaptability and to strengthen and to promote
public trust on the business.

Encourage outsourcing activities
The Office of the Insurance Commission issued the Notification of the Office of Insurance Commission Re:
Insurance Company’s Outsourcing Guideline B.E. 2560 for life and non-life insurance industry, effective on May
25, 2017 onward. The Notification was issued in order to improve effectiveness of insurance company’s business
operation and to provide a guideline for the company to outsource some of the operation to external experts
to increase efficiency and

2

Improving Operational Standard of Insurer To ensure that insurance companies have

good management system and service and that the members of the company’s Board, manager
or person with management power have proper knowledge and capability for the responsibility
through the following measures.

Organizing a meeting with insurance companies’ Board members to improve the standard
of corporate governance
In realizing the importance of corporate governance and to ensure that insurance companies are operated
under sound management system with transparency and auditability which are important factors to create trust
and sustainable growth, the Office of the Insurance Commission organized the meeting with insurance companies’
board members on April 19, 2017 at the Plaza Athenee Hotel. The event featured special lecture on OIC Policies
on Corporate Governance by Dr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn, OIC Secretary-General and on Professional Board
of Directors and the Success of Business Operation by Mr. Bandid Nijathaworn, president and CEO of IOD and
panel discussion sessions led by MissVarawan Vechasut, OIC Deputy Secretary for General Supervision and
Mr. Chuchat Pramulphon, Deputy Secretary-General for Examination Affairs.

Compliance Self-Assessment: Participation in Corporate Governance by Company’s Board
The Office of the Insurance Commission has developed the Compliance Self-Assessment Form entitled
Participation of Insurance Board Members in Corporate Governance to create awareness among insurance
companies’ Board members on participation in corporate governance process as a tool to build sustainable
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operation of the business and to ensure that their companies strictly and effectively comply with the laws. The
assessment form covers 3 following areas:
1) Corporate Governance: Building of Sustainable Value
2) Corporate Governance: Compliance
3) Corporate Governance: Market Conduct
The OIC believes in the importance of the Board’s participation in the areas above-mentioned and,
therefore, convened meeting with insurance companies’ Board members in order to communicate with them
on the direction of the assessment and to get the views and recommendations on the draft self-assessment
form. The OIC also convened another meeting after the completion of the assessment form drafting in order to
clarify the detail of the assessment process. The OIC will use the results of the assessment in the regulation and
examination of insurance companies and in a process to select the Insurance’s Prime Minister Awards 2016. The
weight of the result in the selection process is 13% of all scores according to the OIC Notification Rules and
Procedures for Selecting the Insurance Prime Minister Award 2016. The overall results of the assessment showed
that the members of insurance companies’ board are aware of the importance of corporate governance by
setting up major committees such as investment, risk management and internal control, including reporting
system to ensure that the findings of these committees are reported to the company’s Board of Directors.
Moreover, the members of Board of Directors also participate more strictly to ensure that their companies
comply with the laws. However, it was found that the company’s Board of Directors still did not participate
enough in setting up policies, follow-up and assessment in the area of market conduct, especially in the process
of product sales, claim payment and complaint settlement. The OIC shall use the collected information in the
supervision and examination of insurance companies.

Study and Development of IT Audit Regulatory Direction
In realizing the importance of IT technology in the operation of insurance business, the OIC, as a regulatory
agency, hired a consulting firm to conduct a study in IT Audit in order to create a tool for regulation and
examination of insurance companies and to develop the efficiency of IT audit and to encourage insurance
companies to set up IT risk management system that is acceptable to international standard. The OIC has also
invited experts and speakers from foreign countries to lecture on IT audit to OIC personnel. The OIC also
consulted and sought recommendations from the Bank of Thailand (BoT) and Securities and Exchange
Commission. The OIC then hired Deloitte Tohmatsu Consulting firm as the consultant of the project to study
and develop IT Audit.
As part of the project implementation, in August 2017, the OIC convened a meeting to provide detail on
the project and to communicate to the industry the directions of project implementation and to prepare the
industry for the IT audit. The OIC also asked the industry to complete the Questionnaire Checklist relating to IT
technology which the OIC needed for the assessment of IT risk in insurance industry in Thailand. After that, the
OIC has drafted the IT Audit- Risk Based Supervision guideline and manual. The OIC also selected pilot
companies to undergo the IT Audit in the first quarter of 2018.

Compliance with Financial Standard IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
In realizing the significant impacts of the implementation of IFRS 9: Financial Instruments , an accounting
standard being prepared by the Federation of Accounting Professionals (FAP) to be implemented in 2019 on
operation and accounting practices of insurance companies, the OIC has set up a working group to follow up
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and to prepare for the implementation. The working group’s responsibility is to consult with the insurance
industry on practical issues relating to the new accounting standard. The working group comprises representatives
from the OIC, Thai Life Assurance Association, Thai General Insurance Association, the Actuarial Society of
Thailand, Federation of Accounting Professionals (FAP) and the major audit firms.
At the initial stage, the Working Group met several times to discuss the practical impacts of the new
accounting standard on Thai insurance industry and resolved that Thai Life Assurance Association shall compile
a report on quantitative impacts and propose the results to the OIC. Then the preparation plan for the
implementation of the new accounting standard will be developed in compliance with the IFRS 9: Financial
Instruments. Moreover, the OIC is also planning to prepare articles on the new accounting standard to be
distributed to the business and related parties in order to create and awareness and to prepare for the
implementation of such standard.
The OIC has hired the PwC ABAS to be a consultant of a project to conduct a study and to prepare for the
implementation of the accounting standard on financial instrument and insurance contract. The duration of the
study project is 300 days, starting in November 2017 and ending in September 2018. In the first phase of the
project, the focus of the study will be on 2 activities, i.e. the organization of training courses on IFRS 9: Financial
Instruments and other related accounting standards to personnel of the OIC and insurance industry and seminars
to communicate the issue with senior executives of insurance companies to be aware of the imminent impacts
and the OIC policies on the implementation of such accounting standard. The second phase is the reporting of
analysis on the impacts of the accounting standard from insurance companies and other agencies, related to
the implementation of the IFRS 9: Financial Instruments. The OIC and the consulting firm has sent our questionnaire
and selected pilot companies for the interviewing sessions in order to collect necessary information for the
analysis and assessment of the impacts on Insurance industry as well as to develop preparation plan and to
propose potential impacts on the OIC regulation.

Improving Risk Management System of Insurance Company
Followings are actions taken by the Office of the Insurance Commission on risk management.
1. Set minimum requirements on enterprise risk management (ERM) by focusing on the roles and duties
of the company’s Board of Directors to ensure that their companies have a complete risk management system
according to the Committee of Sponsoring Organization or COSO. The Insurance Commission approved the
issuance of the OIC Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions for Setting Minimum
Requirements for risk management by Insurance company that includes provisions on risk management culture,
risk management supervision structure, risk management policies, risk management scope, risk management
process, risk management IT system and reporting on risk management system. The new regulation was signed
by the Permanent Secretary for Finance in the capacity of the Chairman of the Insurance Commission on July
24, 2017 and became effective in 180 days after its publication in the Government Gazette.
2. Upgrading the standard of operation and management of underwriting and reinsurance risks of insurance
company by improving the content of the OIC Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions
for Reinsurance of Life Insurance Company and non-life insurance company which has already been through
the hearing of work units inside the OIC. And it is now being revised before offering for the hearing by the
industry.
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3. Information technology risk management. The OIC conducted a study on information technology risk
management and cyber security risk, based on the standard and practical guidelines of other regulatory agencies
and the International Organization for Standardization (ISO). The OIC also visited 4 target insurance companies
for consultations and exchanging of views on information technology risk management and cyber security threat.
After that the OIC had drafted the guideline on information technology risk management and cybersecurity which
has been approved by the Insurance Commissioner on December 28, 2017.

Upgrading Information Disclosure Standard
The OIC has improve the content of the OIC Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions
for Disclosure of Financial Standing and Operational Performance of Life Insurance Company and non-life
insurance company in accordance with the standard of the International Association of Insurance Supervisors
(IAIS), specified in the ICP 20 on Public Disclosure and the context of business operation in Thailand. The
improvement has been made in order to ensure that the insured, the people and market participants have
information relating the business operation, operation performance, financial standing and risks of insurance
company that are clear, adequate and complete and available within a proper period of time to be helpful for
making a decision to get insurance coverage and to interact with Life Insurance Company and non-life insurance
company. The OIC also wants to ensure that insurance company has high transparency and operational standard.
The OIC Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions for for Disclosure of Financial Standing
and Operational Performance of Life Insurance Company and non-life insurance company B.E…..has been
submitted for approval in principle by the Insurance Commission in December 2017 before offering for a hearing
by Life Insurance Company and non-life insurance company. After that, the OIC will submit the draft for an
approval by the Insurance Commission and to be signed by the Chairman of the Insurance Commission.

Upgrading Examination and Correction of Financial and Operational Problem of insurance
company.
The OIC Scrutiny Committee, chaired by the OIC Secretary-General met and proposed measures to prevent
and correct problems, caused by insurance company that may cause damage to the insured and the public.
As a result, the Committee resolved to take urgent corrective measures on the following 2 non-life insurance
companies.
1) The Insurance Commission resolved to order the Sajja Insurance Public Company Limited to temporary
stop business operation, starting from April 28, 2017 onward. Later on the Order of the Ministry of Finance
No. 1196/2560, dated August 11, 2017 was issued to revoke the business license of Sajja Insurance Public
Company Limited because the company’s financial standing is not stable and has committed several legal
violation that may cause damage to the insured and the public.
2) Conducted an examination and implemented a supervisory measure on one insurance company which
was listed as the “In-Patient” company that close supervision on financial standing was needed. The OIC also
ordered the company to correct financial and operational deficiency.

Adjusting the Standard Medical Service Expense and Treatment Cost that Insurance
Company or Road Accident Victim Compensation Fund Pay to the Victim.
Although social and economic conditions have changed but the standard medical service expense and
treatment cost that insurance companies and the Road Accident’s Victim Compensation Fund have to pay to
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the victims as required under the law which has been enforced since 2004 remained unchanged. The Office of
the Insurance Commission, therefore, proposed the change to be considered by the Road Accident’s Victims
Protection Committee at its meeting No. 1/2559 on August 1, 2016. The meeting resolved to set up a
Sub-committee to conduct a study on the standard medical service expense and treatment cost for road
accident’s victims, chaired by the OIC Secretary-General. The Sub-committee then proposed the directions for
adjusting the costs, based on the standard medical service expense and treatment cost of several government
agencies including the Ministry of Public Health, the Comptroller General’s Department and the National Institute
of Emergency Medicine. However, since the Ministry of Public Health and the National Institute of Emergency
Medicine are in the process of adjusting their standard medical service expense and treatment cost, the
Sub-committee decided to go ahead and adjust the standard cost of some medical services, especially those
which are lower than the standard costs of some government agencies such as the Social Welfare Office and
the Comptroller General’s Department. And once the Ministry of Public Health and the National Institute of
Emergency Medicine announced the new standard costs, the OIC will reconsider them again.
The meeting of the Road Accident Victims Protection Committee resolved to improve the standard medical
service expense and treatment cost and issued the Notification of The Protection for Motor Vehicle Victims
Committee on Standard Medical Service Expense and Treatment Cost that Insurance Company or Victim
Protection Fund Shall Pay to the Victim (No. 2) B.E. 2560. The Notification was signed by the Permanent Secretary
for Finance who is the chairman of the Protection for Motor Vehicle Victims Committee and has become
effective on June 29, 2017 onward. The newly adjusted standard medical service expense and treatment cost
are divided into 2 parts i.e. medical service expenses and emergency ambulance service cost in order to make
the prescription of such standard costs more complete and in consistent with current market situation in which
the cost has increased. The total number of medical services that the accident victim are entitled to reimburse
has increased to 29 items and no reduction of cost has been made. For example the Special Brain Diagnostic
Imaging cost increased from 4,000 Baht to 5,000 Baht (25%increase), medical service cost for the professionals
and nursing charge for general patients increased from 360 Baht to 500 Baht (39%) and emergency ambulance
charge increased from the existing 500 Baht/incident for urban area and 0.90 Baht/incident in rural area to 1,100
Baht for the first 10 kilometers and 10 Baht per any additional 1 km.

3

Improving Insurance Market Conduct To Ensure Fair Treatment and Promote Public
Trust Through the following Actions.

Insurance Agent and Broker Supervision
In viewing that it is important to closely supervise the market conduct of insurance agents and brokers to
ensure that the consumers who have bought insurance policies received good services and all insurance
benefits that they are entitled to, the OIC has developed a standard guideline to control the quality of insurance
product sales with a view to developing the potential and improving the ethical and professional standard of
the insurance agents/brokers including legal compliance through the following activities and measures.
1) Meeting with the Thai Banking Association and representatives of 19 commercial banks to discuss about
regulatory direction and quality control over the sales of insurance products through commercial banks in order
to ensure that they are operated more efficiently and more beneficial to the consumers. So far, the OIC also
conducted random examination at several commercial banks in the provincial areas regularly and have found
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many issues and information on product sales, practiced by some of those banks. As a result, the OIC has
developed measures that would help develop better and more efficient process of examination and quality
control on product sales through commercial banks. The OIC convened a total of 3 such meetings on March 7,
2017, June 21, 2017 and September 13, 2017 at the OIC Building.
2) Developing Bancassurance Incident Disclosure (BID) Report. The Office of the Insurance Commission
developed the Bancassurance Incident Disclosure (BID) Report and requested commercial banks to report the
incidents relating to the sales of insurance products by the banks that may negatively affect the reputation,
image and operation of the banks such as the incidents negatively reported in the media or complaints within
3 days after the date that the incident occurred or is known and to provide further report when full detail of
the incident is known. The measure became effective on October 1, 2017 onward.
3) Considering the Implementation of “Market Conduct Annual Statement (MCAS)” reporting system to
analyze the quality of insurance product sales by commercial banks. This is a measure developed to assess the
banks’ internal control system that comprises the 4 following parts, i.e. 1) overview of all insurance products
being offered for sales by bank, 2) analysis of insurance product sales process, tools used for risk control in each
insurance product sales, follow-up system to ensure compliance with sales guideline, 3) analysis of the problems/
causes of the complaint cases that occurred in the past year including the statistics of the complaint cases,
computing issues or errors that occurred in the process of insurance product sales and 4) directions for improving
insurance product sales quality control by requiring the banks to submit the Market Conduct Annual Statement
(MCAS) to Executive Committee that supervises the insurance product sales. The banks shall start preparing the
MCAS report in 2018 and start submitting it to the OIC before April 30, 2019.

Upgrading Claim Management System
On January 29, 2016, the Office of the Insurance Commission has issued the Notification of the Insurance
Commission, Re: Criteria, Methods and Conditions for Life Insurance Claim Payment, B.E. 2559 in order to require
insurance company to have in place systems for claim management and complaint settlement that are clear,
standardized, efficient and fair to the insured and capable of reducing the number of complaint or dispute
cases. The OIC hopes that the requirement will create public confidence on insurance business. The Notification
which became effective on September 4, 2016 onward would enable the OIC to conduct examination at the
offices of all insurance companies in the year 2018. In 2016, it examined 6 companies and in 2017 30 companies.

Convening Meeting to Clarify Practical Aspects of the Insurance Commission has issued
the Notification of the Insurance Commission, Re: Criteria, Methods and Conditions for
Life Insurance Claim Payment
1) The OIC convened a meeting to clarify the practical guideline for complying with the OIC Notification
on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions for Claim Payment for Insurance Companies in order to inform
the insurance companies to understand the OIC Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions
for claim payment for Non-life companies B.E. 2016 and OIC Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and
Conditions for claim payment for life companies B.E. 2016. The OIC also used the occasion to remind insurance
companies of the penalties clause in both notifications which stipulate that violation or non-compliance is
subject to a fine of not more than 500,000 Baht and 20,000 Baht/day if the violation is continuing. The meeting
was convened on June 21, 2017 at the Chao Phraya Park Hotel, Bangkok.
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		 The OIC will begin to enforce and follow up on the compliance with both notifications as of July 1, 2017.
2) The OIC and the Thai General Insurance Association organized a seminar on compliance with the OIC
Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions for Claim Payment by Insurance Company. The
seminars entitled “Settlement of Insurance Dispute Based on Results of Analysis on Complaint Cases” were
organized 4 times in the following regions.

1
3

Central Region: At Mida Dhavaravadi
Grand Hotel, Nakhon Pathom on
Wednesday, September 27, 2017.
Northeast Region: Avani Khon Kaen
Hotel and Convention Center, Khon
Kaen Province on November 9, 2017.

2
4

Southern Region: Buri Sriphu Boutique
Hotel, Songkhla on October 4, 2017
North: Kanary Hill Hotel Chiang Mai,
November 22, 2017

3) The OIC and the Thai Life Assurance Association organized a seminar on “Protection of the Insured’s
Rights” in order to discuss and to find ways to properly comply with the OIC Notification on Rules and
Procedures, Methods and Conditions for Insurance Claim Payment B.E. 2559 to ensure that the processes of
claim payment and complaint settlement of companies are managed quickly, efficiently and fair to the public
and the insured. The event was organized on October 29, 2017 at the Dheva Mantra Resort, Kanchanaburi.

Initiate “Nakhon Phanom Model” to prevent and to provide insurance remedy to the
northeasterners.
On August 1, 2017, the Dr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn, the Secretary General, Office of Insurance
Commission and OIC executives visited the flooded areas in the Northeast, starting in Nakhon Phanom province.
The team donated consumer goods and drinking water to the people affected by the flood through Mr. Somchai
Witdamrong, the Governor of Nakhon Phanom. On this occasion, the OIC Secretary General also presided over
a meeting to prevent and to provide assistance to those who are affected by the flood, in conjunction with the
Provincial Disaster Mitigation Office in Nakhon Phanom, the Road Accident Victims Protection Co., Ltd., the Bank
of Agriculture & Cooperatives and local business entities in the provinces. The meetings resulted in 2 insurancerelated measures. The first part is the implementation of preventive measures to lessen the impacts in the
areas that have not been affected by the flood and the second part is the remedial measure for the areas that
have already been flooded. The goal was to accelerate the remedial measures by coordinating to get insurance
information relating to the results of survey, loss assessment, loss information and to ensure that the claim
payment process was quick, accurate and fair. The OIC also emphasized the relevant parties to comply with the
2011 guideline on auto claim payment, relating to the repair of cars affected by the flood in order to prevent
the car insured from being taken advantage of. As for the affected farmers, the OIC asked for cooperation from
the Bank of Agriculture and cooperatives to accelerate public relations effort to encourage farmers in the areas
that haven’t been affected by flood to acquire annual rice crop insurance protection as a means to manage
the risk from flood. As for the those in the flooded areas and have crop insurance protection, survey should be
accelerated so that claim payment can be made quicker.
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Strategy 2: Create Knowledge and Access to Insurance
This strategy is developed in order to create knowledge, understanding and access to insurance by the
public in order that the people are able to manage their risks effectively and is implemented through the
following 3 tactics.

1

Creating Insurance Knowledge and Understanding. In order to create public

knowledge and understanding so that people realize the importance of insurance as a tool to
manage the risks that may affect their lives and properties, the OIC has worked in cooperation with
several other government agencies and the private sector to develop tools, formats, methods and
many form of public relations media in order to provide proper education on insurance to target
groups. Followings are activities that have been implemented in the past year.

1.1 Joined efforts with government and private agencies to create knowledge on insurance benefits to the
public through training courses.
		 (1) Training for Educational Institutions, Students, College Students and Youth
			 1. The OIC organized the advertising movie contest by inviting university students to submit a 45
second movie script in order to campaign and encourage the public to take out compulsory auto insurance.
The contest attracted students from many universities such as Silpakorn University, King Rama 4 Technology
University, Thonburi Campus, Dhurakitbundit University, Kasetsat University, Sri Racha Campus and Sri Prathum
University, Cholburi Campus to submit their works.
			 2. The OIC organized Insurance Youth Project in educational institutions with the aim to provide
knowledge and understanding on insurance and its benefits, especially life insurance and compulsory auto
insurance (Under the Road Accident Victims Act) to children and youth groups. The activities include song
presentation of outstanding insurance youth awards to educational institutions and teachers who have integrated
insurance knowledge in to their teaching curriculum and scholarships to winners of song and short movie
contest. In 2016, students from a total of 620 school entered the contest and the selection committee had
selected the winners for provincial, regional and national levels.
			 The winner received a plaque of honor and scholarship during the “Prime Minister Insurance Award”
presentation ceremony on September 22, 2017 at the Ball Room, Queen Sirikit Convention Center.
(2) Public Network Organizations
			 1. The OIC organized 5 training courses to provide insurance knowledge to members of the
Federation of Consumer Protection during the “Sor Kho Bor Clinic” events in cooperation with the Office of
Consumer Protection Commission in various districts of Bangkok, e.g., 1) Phra Khanong District,
2) Navamintharanuthit Bordindecha School, Wang Thong Lang District, 3) Charoenkrung Maitrijit Church,
Bang Kholam District, 4) Wat Hongrattanaram Worawiharn, Bangkok Yai District and 5) Thongsuk College, Thawee
Watthana District.
			 2. Organized trainings to provide insurance knowledge to community groups such as Village Public
Health Volunteers Group, community leaders groups such as Tambon Administrative Organization, Provincial
Administrative Organization, Sub-district heads, village heads, business operators, household groups and villagers
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groups. The objective is to encourage members of these groups to be insurance volunteers who can disseminate
insurance knowledge to local people and to provide basic consultation and to help affected people to exercise
their insurance right including to undertake publicity activities to introduce the OIC to be better known among
the people. The total number of people who became the insurance volunteers was 8,790.
		 (3) Government and Private Network Organizations
			 1. Set up OIC Exhibition Booth at the “PCBP Roadshow” events, organized by the Office of
Consumer Protection Board (OCPB) in many provinces such as Roi Et, Chachoengsao and Kamphaengpet.
			 2. Set up exhibition booth and provided knowledge and understanding on finance, investment
and insurance at the “6th Money Expo 2017” at the Queen Sirikit Convention Center.
			 3. Joined activities and provided insurance knowledge in cooperation with the National Village
and Urban Community Fund Office at the MoU signing ceremony to drive shops and Talad Pracha Ratch Market
to be the as models of community market on March 8, 2017 at the Jubilee Room, Challenger Hall, Impact Muang
Thong Thani Convention Center. About 3,000 people attended the function.
			 4. Set up OIC exhibition booth to provide insurance knowledge at the SET in the City Bangkok
event, organized between March 23-26, 2017 and November 16-19, 2017 at the Royal Paragon Hall, Siam
Paragon Shopping Center.
			 5. Set up OIC exhibition booth to provide
insurance knowledge on finance, investment and insurance
at 2 Money Expo 2017 event, entitled “Financial Innovation
4.0” to promote and create knowledge in FinTech and
Start Up to promote Thailand economy towards the
fully digitized system in the future as follows.
			
1) The 17th Money Expo Bangkok 2017 between May 11-14, 2017 at the Impact Muang Thong
Thani Convention Center.
				 2) The Korat Money Expo 2017 in Nakhon Ratchasima between August 4-6, 2017 at MCC Hall,
The Mall, Nakhon Ratchasima.
			 6. Set up OIC exhibition booth in the 13th Thailand Road Safety Seminar : Invest for Sustainable
Road Safety on December 6, 2017 at the BITEC Bang Na Convention Center. The OIC also received the Prime
Minister Road Safety Award 2017 for being a model agency that promotes road safety on a continuous basis
from Mr. Suthee Makboon, the Deputy Minister of Interior, Chairman of the event.
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1.2 Insurance for Road Safety Campaign
		 1) The OIC launched a campaign to promote road safety during Songkran Holiday 2017 because
during holidays, the number of accidents has been much higher than normal. The OIC cares for the lives and
properties of the people and realizes the importance of road safety promotion on a continuous basis. It also
promotes the public to use insurance as a preventive measure against possible risks that may occur. It therefore
joined hands with the insurance business to hold a press conference to announce the Songkran Road Safety
Project on April 3, 2017 at the OIC Building. The objectives are to create awareness and consciousness on road
safety for both drivers and passengers of the vehicles including the introduction of new insurance products
available during the holiday such as the compulsory auto insurance under the Road Accident’s Victim Protection
Act B.E. 2535 (Phor Ror Bor) and Holiday Suk Jai Micro Insurance or “200 Baht and 222 Baht Micro Insurance.
Other activities included the promotion for children to wear helmets in which 7 general insurance companies
provided 1,200 helmets to primary school children in 8 schools in Bangkok and the provinces and free
motorcycle check-up, oil change and headlight change, etc.

		 2) Implemented measures to support road safety campaign according to the government policy to
decrease the losses from road accidents and to promote the public to have insurance protection. Some of the
measures included the discount of premium for the insured who installed CCTV in their cars, the introduction
of “Don’t Drive While Being Drunk Insurance Policy”, “Take Photo of Accident Scene and Separate” and the
Holiday Suk Jai PA or micro insurance whose premiums are only 100 or 222 Baht but provide death protection
as high as 100,000 Baht and medical compensation for accidental injury of 5,000 Baht.
		 3) Organized activities to provide insurance-related assistance to the people all over in the provincial
areas during Songkran and New Year holidays by jointly setting up the Road Accident Prevention and Reduction
Operation Center to prevent and reduce number of road accidents during the Songkran and New Year holidays
and to provide insurance related information and assistance to provincial agencies where the OIC Provincial
Offices are located and meeting with local network organizations in the risk areas and providing insurance
related information and advice on claim process, etc., to the people.
			 Organized campaigns to promote road
safety during Songkran Holidays 2017 such as the
“Travel Without Worry the Songkran Holidy: Buying
Insurance Protection” to promote the 222 Baht Micro
Insurance Product during April 8-12, 2017 at Hua Lampong
Train Station, Moh Chit Transport Centers and 12 train
stations and 60 bus stations in the provinces.
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1.3 The OIC joined other relevant government agencies and the Thai General Insurance Association to
developed the annual rice crop insurance project since 2016 and the Cabinet approved the OIC plan to provide
“Insurance Knowledge Training for Trainers” in order to publicize the project and to create knowledge and
understanding on insurance to officials of various government agencies and those whose works are related to
farmers. After the training, these trainees will further train the farmers in their areas of jurisdictions on the
knowledge of annual rice crop insurance, particularly on conditions of annual rice crop insurance policy, claim
filing procedures and basis for declaring emergency zone, eligible for special assistance in case of natural
disaster. A total of 9 training for trainers courses have been organized in the following provinces in 2017. The
total number of trainees was 2,026.
		 1. Khon Kaen: On May 8, 2017 at the Pullman Khon Kaen Racha Orchid.
		 2. Nakhon Sawan: On May 23, 2017 at the Grand Hill Resort & Spa, Nakhon Sawan.
		 3. Sukhothai: On June 7, 2017 at Sukhothai Treasure Resort & Spa.
		 4. Chachoengsao: On June 14, 2017 at Santana Wellness Resort & Spa.
		 5. Petchburi: On June 20, 2017 at Long Beach, Cha-am Hotel.
		 6. Buriram: On June 27, 2017 at Thep Nakhon Buriram Hotel.
		 7. Roi Et: On July 3, 2017 at Petcharat Hotel.
		 8. Sakon Nakhon: On July 18, 2017 at MJ The Majestic Hotel.
		 9. Songkla: On August 21, 2017 at Buri Sri Pu Boutique Hotel.
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1.4 Organized the Insurance Expo 2017 event
under the concept “InsurTech Connect: Opportunities
and Challenges for Thailand Future” in order to provide
an opportunity for various private and government
agencies to show their intent to create public
awareness on risk management and how to create
security for themselves and families and investment.
The event also featured the achievements of
insurance-related projects, implemented under the
government policy for the benefits of the public. The
first event under this project was the presentation of
the “Prime Minister’s Insurance Awards” in which Mr. Apisak Tantiworawong, the Minister of Finance was assigned
by the Prime Minister to preside over the ceremony. The Minister of Finance also gave a lecture on “Opportunity
and Challenges of Technology and the Future of Thailand” and presented the Prime Minister’s Awards to those
who made contribution to the OIC and insurance system.
		 The second event, the Insurance Expo 2017 was organized in order to present the concept of how to
cope with the changes in digital age and how insurance business can keep abreast with the rapid technological
change and innovation. The activities include academic lectures on insurance technology by foreign experts
held between September 22-24, 2017 at the Queen Sirikit Convention Center.
		 The organization of “Insurance Expo 2017” was very successful. The total number of visitors to the
event was 43,431 and total number of insurance policies purchased during the event was 12,665, of which 5,253
was life insurance policies and 7,412 was non-life insurance policies. The total premium income was 628 million
Bath of which 571 million Baht was life premium and 57 million Baht was non-life premium. The top general
insurance product sold at the event was auto insurance, followed by PA and health insurance, respectively. For
life insurance product, saving, PA and whole life insurance were the most popular products. The number of
products sold at this event showed that the public are more interested and realized the importance of insurance.
Other factors attracting the visitors to buy insurance product at the event included the discount of as much as
30% and the provision of information on insurance innovations.
1.5 “OIC for Community” is a pilot project that employed pro-active approach to drive the OIC to be close
to the people in different communities all over the country and to create knowledge and understanding on
insurance and benefits in insurance policy as well as the necessity and benefits of insurance as a tool to manage
the risks, associated with life and properties for their own life and families. The OIC also used the opportunities
to introduce the missions and roles of the OIC as well as available channels that the public can access its
services. The OIC also want the people to know and to have confidence in insurance system through the
implementations of projects in various communities. The OIC also visited and learned the way of life and careers
of the local people in order to get to know their problems which are different from one area to the other. The
OIC used the collected information to improve and to develop insurance products so that they are more
responsive to the needs of the people in the communities. The OIC also set up a work unit to accept complaint
cases and mobile arbitration unit to help settle insurance related disputes right in the local community. In
addition, the OIC also provided support to insurance business that includes life and non-life insurance, insurance
agents and brokers in different types of activities in order to encourage them to play larger roles in developing
the country’s communities. The OIC held a press conference to kick off the “OIC for Community” project at the
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Klong Lad Mayom Floating Market in Talingchan Sub-district, Bangkok on October 4, 2017. After that, the OIC
implemented activities in 5 following communities.
1. Ban Bang Plub Community, Bang Prom Sub-district, Bang Khonthee
District, Samut Songkhram Province
2. Bang Luang Community, Banglen District, Nakhon Pathom Province
3. Wat Champa Community, Talingchan District, Bangkok
4. Ton Tarn Community, Sao Hai District, Saraburi Province
5. Thai Puan Community, Bangpli District, Nakhon Nayok Province

2

Encouraging the Development of Insurance Products that are Suitable to
the Needs and Risks.

Development of Insurance Products
To ensure the availability of insurance products that are diverse and responsive to the risks and needs of
the public, the OIC has vigorously worked to promote these kinds of products for the people, especially the
low income group and those with less opportunity who need insurance protection. The effort is also to help
narrow the social inequality. Last year, the OIC has developed the following insurance policies.

1) Micro Insurance for low income people
		 The goal for developing this insurance product is to enable the group of people with low income to
have access to insurance system in order to relieve the troubles that family members have to face if the head
of family passed away. The OIC also wants to promote insurance industry to contribute more to society and to
help the people. The main features of this type of insurance policy include low premium, simple protection,
moderate sum-insured straight forward policy wordings, flexible mode of premium payment according to the
nature of income, i.e., daily, monthly or yearly, simple claim process and minimum exclusions.
		 The Office of Insurance Commission, Thai Life
Assurance Association and Thai General Insurance
Association have the policy to promote micro insurance
during major national holidays called “Suk Jai Personal
Accident Micro Insurance”. The first policy of this type
was launch in New Year holiday of 2016. And in order
to expand the access to insurance product, the OIC
and insurance industry also introduced a new type of
micro-insurance to provide protection during the
Songkran holiday called “Songkran Suk Jai Personal
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Accident Insurance Plus” or “Micro Insurance 222” which has been newly developed by the OIC. This PA provides
protections for death and dismemberment caused by accident at the maximum of 100,000 Baht, murder, assault
and/or while driving or riding the motorcycle at the maximum of 50,000 Baht and medical expense for accidental
injury of not more than 5,000 Baht. The premium is 222 Baht.

2) Discount of 5-10% on Compulsory Auto Insurance Premium If CCTV Installed in Car
		 Now, the number of casualty from road accident in Thailand is the second highest in the world and
the traffic in Bangkok is among the worse in the world and the causes of traffic jam are a lack of traffic discipline
and violation of traffic laws by drivers. Apart from traffic police, the creation of traffic discipline needs cooperation
of the public as well. This is why many responsible agencies agreed that the installation of CCTV in cars would
help check traffic disciplines of the drivers and can be used as a tool to help determine the wrong-doing party
in road accident. The tool can be used to remind the driver to drive carefully and not to violate traffic law and
to help prevent criminal act as well.
		 The OIC, therefore, consulted the concept with responsible parties including the insurance industry and
reached a collective conclusion that insurance incentive would attract auto drivers to install CCTV inside their vehicles
which in turn would help promote traffic discipline and reduce road accidents. Moreover, the scene of road accident,
recorded by CCTA would enable a more efficient and fair claim payment. As a result, the OIC has issued the Order of
the Insurance Commissioner No. 8/2560 on Auto Insurance Premium for CCTV Installed Vehicles with the view to
attracting car drivers to install CCTV inside their vehicles by providing 5-10% discount on net premium of voluntary
auto insurance, effective as of March 3, 2017 onward. The car owner must show photo of the installed CCTV when
buying auto insurance and must keep it installed throughout the insurance period.

3) Micro to Restrict Level of Alcohol in Blood at Not Exceeding 50 Mg%
		 Statistics shows that one of the main causes of death from road accidents is driving while under the
influence of alcohol. In the past, the OIC has coordinated with several agencies such as the Disaster Prevention
and Mitigation Department, the Don’t Drunk Drive Foundation, Road Safety System Reform Steering Committee,
National Reform Steering Committee, etc., in order to conduct publicity campaign and to find the ways and
measures to reduce the number of road accidents but the result was not quite successful. The OIC therefore
tried to find new measures to achieve the goal of the effort and finally found that insurance-related measure
is potentially able to lessen the number of road accidents.
		 After conducting a study on factual information, legal aspects and views and recommendations on the
pros and cons of each measure, the OIC concluded that the best solution that may bring better result is the
amendment of exclusion in auto insurance policy relating to the reduction of blood alcohol content to meet
the requirement in the Land Traffic Act. The measure would help promote the “Don’t Drunk Drive” campaign
and reduction of road accidents under the sustainable road safety reform plan. The OIC therefore issued the
Insurance Commissioner Order No. 11/2560 on Amendment of Form, Policy Wordings and Attachment to
Insurance Policy. One of the main provisions stipulated that if a driver who has a voluntary insurance coverage
is found to have blood alcohol content higher than 50 Mg% when an accident occurred, that driver shall not
be eligible for death and loss of property protection under the insurance policy. However, the victim such road
accident and the third party, affected by the that insured vehicle would still be entitled to the insurance
protection. The insurance company that insured the vehicle that caused the loss must pay compensation to
the third party for both the death protection and property loss. The insurance company shall then take a
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recourse action against the driver whose blood alcohol content is higher than 50 Mg%. The Order would become
effective on June 1, 2017 onward because the OIC viewed that insurance companies need time to communicate
and create understanding with the public and to prepare the sales documents and necessary information for
the insured to prevent confusion that may arise from the change. The adjustment in the blood alcohol content
under this Order shall not apply to the insurance protection under the compulsory insurance protection.

4) Cyber Threat Insurance
		 The OIC has a policy to promote insurance companies to develop cyber insurance products in order
to prevent the risk and loss that may be caused by cyber-threat to all types of business operations including
the manufacturers of goods and services providers, especially financial institutions whose risk level is very high.
The protection would be designed for both the first and third parties.
		 Moreover, as a result of the spread of the what so-called “WannaCry” and “Petwrap” malwares that
widely caused the damage, the OIC has developed a 2-level measure to cope the malware threat. First is the
development of organizational level practical guideline to prevent malwares that the OIC has already instructed its
nationwide network of OIC Provincial Offices to strictly comply with the guideline in order to monitor and to
prevent cyber threat that may threaten the security of OIC computer network. The second measure is designed
for the insurance industry in which the OIC has been closely monitored and worked with the Thai Life Assurance
Association and Thai General Insurance Association to make sure that these organizations monitor and have
prepared the system to prevent and cope with cyber threat as well as to communicate with the staff and the
public to be aware of the preventive measures and the spread of cyber-threat. These organizations are also
required to submit reports to the OIC from time to time.

5) Liability Insurance for Passengers of Floating Resorts or Restaurant
		 The OIC has, for the first time, approved personal accident insurance policy for the passenger of river
floating resorts or restaurants as a voluntary insurance protection for accidents occurring while using the floating
accommodation. The protection cover the passengers who are tourists while they are on or in the floating resorts
or restaurants, including those who are boarding or leaving the floating resorts or restaurants, except the operator.
Compensation for death, dismemberments or total permanent disability is 100,000 Baht/person, medical care
for accidental injury is 15,000 Baht/person and the premium is between 100-150 Baht/person. Protection for
float operator could be additionally purchased.

6) Insurance Policy for Motorized Sea Water Craft Used for Special Mission (Rental Jet Ski)
The OIC, Marine Department and the Miscellaneous Insurance Committee of the Thai General
Insurance Association have joined hands to launch the “Insurance Policy for Motorized Sea Water Craft Used
for Special Mission (Rental Jet Ski) to promote the owners of licensed rental jet ski to get insurance coverage
against losses that may occur to life, physical body and properties, including third party liability. The protection
is divides into 3 parts. The first part is liability protection against loss from using the craft in case of death or
total permanent disability, including dismemberment, loss of eyesight or capability to use both hands, feet or
eyes, totaling 50,000 Baht/person and loss of eyesight or capability to use one hands, feet or eyes, totaling
30,000 Baht/person. The medical care compensation for accidental injury is at actual cost but not more than
15,000 Baht/person. The second part is the third party liability, the compensation for death, dismemberment
or total permanent disability is 50,000 Baht/person, medical care compensation for accidental injury is at actual
cost but not more than 15,000 Baht/person and compensation against property loss is at actual amount but
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not more than 25,000 Baht/incident. The launch of this insurance product was to create confidence among
tourists and the public that if accident occurred while riding the jet ski, they will get full compensation according
to the insurance policy conditions and also help create good image of insurance industry among foreign tourists.

7) Insurance Policy for Long-stay Visa Holders
		 The OIC and the Thai General Insurance Association has been consulting to develop insurance policy
for the long-stay tourist visa holders according to the government’s policy. The OIC and TGIA has met and
discussed the development the rules and procedures for the insurance product including the relating operating
procedures to support the Notification of the Interior Ministry on Permitting Certain Types of Aliens to Stay for
a Long-Term in the Country in Special Case, issued on July 6 and 12, 2017.

8) Insurance Policy Endorsement to Extend Liability Protection against Accident While
Transporting Dangerous Goods.
		 The OIC and the Thai General Insurance Association has worked together to draft the endorsement to
extend liability protection against accident while transporting hazardous substance (for auto insurance policy)
to support the Notification of Ministry of Industry regarding Insurance for Hazardous Substance Transportation
B.E. 2559 (2016) dated 14th December B.E. 2559 which requires that operator of hazardous substance transport
service must have liability insurance protection from the point of origin to the destination as follows.
		 1) Insurance protection under the Road Accident’s Victims Protection Act B.E. 2535
		 2) Voluntary third person liability insurance protection of not less than 2 million Baht per accident.
		 3) Liability insurance for accident that causes leak and spill, explosion or flame from hazardous
substance of all types while being transported with sum insured of not less than 5 million Baht/accident and
covers expenses for relocation, mitigation of damage and loss and rehabilitation to original or near original
condition including the damage to environmental condition, animals, plants, natural resource, state properties
or property which has no owner.
			 The minimum and maximum range of premium were set between 0.1-1.0 % of the sum-insured
which is about 5,000 - 50,000 Baht)

3

Expanding Public Access to Insurance

The OIC promoted the expansion of opportunity to enable the public to access insurance by issuing the
Notification of the Insurance Commission, Re: The Prescribed Rules, Procedures and Methods for Insurance
Policy Selling and Making Claim Payment by Electronic Methods, B.E 2560 and Notification of the Insurance
Commission, Re: The Prescribed Rules, Procedures and Methods for Insurance Policy Issuance, Selling and
Making Claim Payment by Electronic Methods, B.E 2560 which were signed by the Permanent Secretary for
Finance on February 22, 2017, published in the Government Gazette on February 27, 2017 and became effective
in 180 days after its publication in the Government Gazette. The Notification covers the process, starting from
the sales, issuance of insurance policy and claim payment process by electronic methods which would help
the public to have better and quicker access to insurance. Moreover, small insurance companies would have a
new channel of distribution to reach their customers which would indirectly promote competition in the market.
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Strategy 3: Create environment for competition
The OIC encouraged competition among insurance companies with the goal to enable them to be able
to face high dynamic business environment through the following 3 approaches.

1

Promoting competitiveness through product detariffication. The OIC relaxed its
regulations in order to make insurance products and pricing more flexible and reflecting market
mechanism. The goal is to enable the public to benefit from better insurance products and prices
and enable the industry to develop the products that are more responsive to the risks and their
own expertise. Followings are activities implemented by the OIC to promote competitiveness.

Laying out the framework for detariffication of product and pricing
The Office of Insurance Commission has laid out the plan to implement the detariffication of product
and pricing process and is in the process of improving various general insurance policies and their pricing, and
promoting the development of standard policy for the companies to adapt as follows.
1. Marine Cargo Insurance: The OIC is consulting with the Thai General Insurance Association on the
setting of maximum premium rate for marine cargo insurance, hull insurance and inland cargo insurance.
2. Personal Accident and Health Insurance: Consulting with the Thai General Insurance Association in
order to improve the file & use version of personal accident and health insurance policies and pricing of the file
& use travel insurance and personal accident insurance for tourism and tourist guides insurance. The policies
are being improved before the issuance of the Commissioner’s Order.
3. Fire Insurance and Industrial All Risks Insurance (IAR): The OIC Secretary-General issued three Insurance
Commissioner’s Orders, dated April 10, 2017 i.e. 1) the Insurance Commissioner’s Orders No. 14/2560 Re: Revision
of Fire Insurance Premium Rates According to the Type of Risk, 2) the Insurance Commissioner’s Orders
No. 15/2560 Re: Revision of Fire Insurance Premium Rates (Annual) for Residential Homes and the Insurance
Commissioner’s Orders No. 16/2560 Re: Revision of Fire and Property Insurance Premium Rates. The revision of
fire insurance premium rates under above Orders is divided into 2 parts as follows.
		(1) Industrial Fire Insurance (Apart from residential): In a case where the sum-insured is lower than 50
million Baht, the fire insurance premium rate will be reduced by 10% for every type of risk and in the case where
sum insured is 50 million Baht or more, the minimum premium rate will not be set, only maximum premium is set
at 2.375%.
		 (2) Residential fire insurance has the highest number of policies, compared with other types of risks
and is related to the highest number of insured. However, its loss ratio is very low. In 2015, the scope of fire
insurance coverage has been extended to cover 4 other types of natural disasters, i.e. flood, storm, earthquake
and hails with limit of liability at not more than 20,000 Baht which may cause the claim payment to be higher
in the future. Therefore, in order to help the insured to get more benefit from residential fire insurance, the OIC
has adjusted the premium rate of residential fire insurance down by 15%, effective as of October 1, 2017 onward.
4. Miscellaneous Insurance: The OIC is in the process of improving the standard policies of miscellaneous
insurance such as money insurance, golfers insurance and burglary insurance. The OIC is also developing the
Thai language standard contract work insurance and premium rate.
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Improvement of the Thai Mortality Table
In the past years, life insurance companies and the business have been using the Thai Mortality Table of
2008 which was derived from insurance statistics between 2004-2008 for the calculation of premium rate and
other values included in life insurance policies that they filed for approval by the OIC. However, in the view of
the OIC, the Thai Mortality Table of 2008 is quite out of date and is not consistent with current situation in Thai
society. It, therefore, collected statistical data and conduct a study and analysis with a view to improving the
Thai Mortality Table. After that, the OIC organized a hearing session from insurance industry cooperated with
the Thai Life Assurance Association and Munich Re, a consulting firm and statistical expert. On August 31, 2017,
the Insurance Commissioner, signed the Insurance Commissioner Order No. 57/2560 Re: The Adoption of Thai
Mortality Table 2017. The new TMO applies to life insurance pricing of products that are filed for approval as
of September 1, 2017 onward. This new TMO will enable the public to buy ordinary and industrial life insurance
at a premium of as much as 35% lower.

2

Improving Regulation and Insurance Product Approval Process. In order to
increase efficiency in regulating insurance products and decrease hurdles and delay in approving
insurance products, the Office of Insurance Commission has developed the IT system for electronic
rate and form filing in order to facilitate the increasing number of insurance products that are filed
for approval. The system is equipped to handle both, the product File & Use and regular approval
processes, including the filing of documents, relating to the approval process as follows.

1) Insurance System for Electronic Rate and Form Filing (I-SERFF) which is being tested in real time with
life insurance companies. Some system deficiencies are also being corrected to increase its efficiency. The OIC
is also drafting the Notification of the Insurance Commissioner and developing additional criteria for automatic
approval, based on the proposals to be submitted by Thai Life Assurance Association.
2) Insurance System for Electronic Rate and Form Filing (I-SERFF II) for non-life insurance business. The
development of the system has been completed and a training course were organized for staff of non-life
insurance companies and Thai General Insurance Association on March 22, 2017. Companies are now submitting
information of policies which have been approved into the database in parallel with the submission to the
existing system.

3

Promoting the Linkage of Regional Markets.

In order to promote the role of
Thai insurance business in the integration of ASEAN Economic Community, to be ready for future
competition and to be the most important insurance center in the region, the OIC has taken the
following actions.

1) Face-to-face meeting for a consultation with
Mr. Phung Ngoc Khanh, Director General (Insurance
Commissioner), Insurance Supervisory Authority (ISA),
Ministry of Finance, the Socialist Republic of Vietnam in
order to strengthen cooperation and to exchange views
on development of insurance regulation between the
two countries. The two parties also discussed the
directions for the signing of Memorandum of
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Understanding to exchange experience and to discuss the possibility of Thai insurance companies to expand
investment opportunity in Vietnam. The meeting was held on January 16, 2017 in Hanoi, the Socialist Republic
of Vietnam.
2) Meeting with Dr. Sonephet Inthavong, Deputy
Director General, State Owned Enterprises Management
and Insurance Department (SOEMID), Ministry of
Finance, a group of SOEMID officials and Thai insurance
companies that have investment projects in the Lao
People’s Democratic Republic, in order to strengthen
cooperation in development and insurance supervision
between the two agencies in the future and
development of insurance business between
regulating agencies of the two countries. The meeting also provide a forum to exchange insurance knowledge,
opinions, experiences and to increase investment opportunities for Thai insurance companies in Laos. The meeting
took place on March 13, 2017 in Lao People’s Democratic Republic.
3) Meeting for consultation with Ms. Thipphakone
Chanthavongsa, Vice Minister of Finance, Lao People’s
Democratic Republic to discuss about the cooperation
in the areas of insurance regulation between the OIC
and LPDR Ministry of Finance. Some of the important
topics of consultation included the completion of
missions specified in the MoU between the two agencies,
understanding between the 2 agencies an the support
for training/study tours for officials of LPDR Ministry of
Finance as a way to train the Lao Ministry of Finance
officials to be able to apply the acquired knowledge in their country properly including cooperation relating to
an exchange of insurance-related information. The meeting was held on March 15, 2017 at the Ministry of Finance
of Lao People’s Democratic Republic, Vientiane.
4) Meeting with Ms. Khamphay Vithasay,
Director General, State Owned Enterprises Management
and Insurance Department (SOEMID) to exchange
view on topics relating to technical assistance and
support to the SOEMID. The topic covered how to build
a good insurance regulatory system, sending of OIC
officials to give lectures on insurance regulation to
SOEMID officials, LPDR Ministry of Finance and sending
SOEMID officials to attend a training course at the OIC.
The meeting took place on March 15, 2017 at the
Ministry of Finance of Lao People’s Democratic
Republic, Vientiane.
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5) Meeting with Dr. Mey Vann, Director General
of the Department of Financial Industry, the Ministry
of Economy and Finance and a officials of the insurance
business regulatory agency of Cambodia in order to
discuss the opportunity in signing the Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) to foster cooperation in
insurance regulation between the two agencies and to
exchange knowledge and opinions as well as directions
in insurance regulation and product sales through various
channels of distribution such as Bancassurance. The
meeting was held on May 3, 2017 in Phanom Penh,
Cambodia
6) Signed the Memorandum of Understanding
(MoU) with Dr. Mey Vann, Director General of the
Department of Financial Industry, the Ministry of
Economy and Finance, an insurance regulatory agency.
The signatory ceremony was witnessed by H. E. Madam
Nguon Sokha, Deputy Minister of Economy and Finance
of Cambodia. The MoU was signed in order to promote
cooperation and strengthen capability to develop
insurance business regulation between the regulating
agencies in both countries as well as to develop
technical cooperation, exchange insurance information and strengthen insurance markets in both countries.
The ceremony was held in Phanom Penh, Cambodia on July 7, 2017.
7) Signed the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Autoriti Monetari Brunei Darussalam (AMBD),
Brunei to promote cooperation in development of insurance regulation and insurance industry between the
two countries on September 15, 2017.
8) Convened a consultation meeting between
the OIC and Mr. Zaw Naing, Director General of the
Financial Regulatory Department, Republic of the
Union of Myanmar in order to strengthen cooperation
in developing insurance regulation and industry including
exchange views and opinions between the two countries.
The two parties also discussed a possibility of signing
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) to further
strengthen cooperation to exchange knowledge, views,
experience and technical assistance between the
insurance regulating agencies in the two countries. The
Meeting was held on December 11, 2017 at the
Ministry of Planning and Finance, Naypyidaw, Republic
of the Union of Myanmar.
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9) Signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
with Mr. Muhammad Bin Inbrahim, Governor of Bank
Negara Malaysia (BNM) on December 18, 2017 in order
to provide technical assistance and to exchange
insurance related information for the benefit of both
regulating agencies, including the arrangement for
training on insurance knowledge and expertise in order
to develop personnel capability in both countries.

Cultivate of International Cooperation:
1) The OIC Secretary-General and a team met for a consultation with Mr. Kazumasa Fukada, Managing
Director of the General Insurance Association of Japan (GIAJ) and Mr. Momoru Otsubo, General Manager and the
team of executives of the GIAJ on the topics of strengthening cooperation between the OIC and GIAJ, exchanging
knowledge and views on insurance regulation and development of insurance industry. The meeting was held
on February 22, 2017 at the OIC Building.
2) The OIC and the ASEAN Insurance Training and Research Institute (AITRI) hosted a workshop on
“Risk-based Capital Framework for Insurers” in order to create understanding on risk-based capital, requirements
on capital adequacy, roles of the actuaries in risk-based capital, the analysis of financial position of insurance
companies and its relationships to risk-based capital through the lectures of the speakers who were experts in
the areas. The event also arranged in order to provide opportunity for the participants to exchange knowledge
in practical compliance with the risk-based capital framework. There were more than 40 participants who were
representatives of regulatory agencies in many countries such as Cambodia, Hong Kong, Indonesia, Kenya, Lao
People’s Democratic Republic, Malaysia, Republic of the Union of Myanmar, Nepal, the Philippines, Singapore
and Thailand. The event was held between April 18-21 April 2017 at the Centara Grand Central Ladprao,
Bangkok.

3) OIC Secretary-General presided over the NAIC-OECD-OIC Joint Roundtable on Insurance and Retirement
Saving in Asia, held with the objectives to exchange views and experience on insurance regulation in Asian Region
including the development of the supervision of financial stability in insurance business, access to insurance,
development of insurance market, product design, retirement saving, FinTech in insurance and other related topics.
The OIC Secretary-General also chaired a panel discussion on development of insurance market and access to
insurance services. The event was held between September 20-21, 2017 at the Park Hyatt, Bangkok and hosted by
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the OIC and the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD) and the National Association
of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC). More than 90 participants who were representatives of insurance regulatory
agencies from many countries such as the USA, France, Switzerland, New Zealand, Turkey, China, Japan, India,
Sri Lanka, Papua New Guinea, South Korea, Hong Kong, Singapore, Brunei, Cambodia, Lao People’s Democratic
Republic, Malaysia including the representatives from Thailand’s Government’s Pension Fund, Thai Life Assurance
Association, Thai General Insurance Association and insurance companies.
4) The OIC Secretary General , Office of Insurance Commission and a team of OIC officials met for a
consultation with Mr. Mori Nabuchika, Commissioner (Financial Service Authority, Japan: FSA) and senior
executives of the FSA, Japan’s insurance regulatory agency in order to strengthen cooperation, and agree an the
memorandum of understanding between the two agencies. Some of the major topics discussed at the meeting
including directions of insurance regulation in the age of InsurTech, Cyber threat management, guidelines
for cyber insurance product approval, problems in regulating the sales of insurance products through electronic
channel, etc. The meeting was held on May 22, 2017 in Tokyo, Japan.
5) OIC Secretary-General and a team of OIC
executives attended a meeting of senior executives of
insurance regulatory agencies of Singapore or the
Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) to exchange
experience relating to Insurance technology, rules and
regulations on insurance technology, issuance of
digital product license, technological risk management,
IT Audit and sandbox. The meeting was held on June
12, 2017 in Singapore.
6) OIC Secretary-General and a team of OIC executives met for a consultation with Mr. John Leung, CEO
of the Insurance Authority of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China (IA),
an insurance regulatory agency of Hong Kong on matters relating to the scope of cooperation to exchange
knowledge and experience, including the Financial Sector Assessment Program (Financial Sector Assessment
Program (FSAP)) and the macro perspective of insurance regulation in Hong Kong which Hong Kong has
completed the assessment in 2014. The meeting was held on September 8, 2017 in Hong Kong.
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7) OIC Secretary-General and a team of OIC executives attended the 3rd China-ASEAN Summit Forum on
Insurance Cooperation and Development, organized by the China Insurance Regulatory Commission (CIRC) to
exchange experience and views on insurance regulation in the age of technological advancement and the
rapidly changing insurance landscape. The participants were representatives from 8 countries, i.e. the People’s
Republic of China, Thailand, Republic of the Union of Myanmar, the Philippines, Vietnam, Lao People’s
Democratic Republic, Bangladesh and Sri Lanka. The meeting was held between September 6-7, 2017 in Nanking,
People’s Republic of China.
8) OIC Secretary-General and a team of OIC
executives attended the 24th IAIS Annual Meeting
between November 2-3, 2017, in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia and co-hosted by the International Association
of Insurance Supervisors (IAIS) and the Bank Negara
Malaysia (BNM). The meeting was organized to provide
opportunity for member countries to exchange views
in insurance supervision standard and progress of each
regulatory agency. The most important conclusion of
the meeting was the approval of Insurance Core
Principles which have been improved in many areas such as reinsurance and market conduct including other
consultative topics such as the development of regulatory standard and promotion of consumer knowledge,
access to insurance and application of technology in insurance industry.
9) OIC Secretary-General and a team of OIC executives were invited by Mr. Choe Heungsik, the Governor
of the Korea’s Financial Services Supervision (FSS) to a meeting to discuss cooperation in insurance regulation
and to attend the “International FinTech Seminar : FinTech Landscape and Supervisory Challenges”, which was
very beneficial to regulatory agencies and insurance industry because it provided indepth information and views
on financial and insurance regulation, the business sector and educational institutions in the participating countries.
The event was held between November 15-16, 2017 in Seoul, South Korea.
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Strategy 4: Develop Insurance Infrastructure
This strategy has been developed to build insurance infrastructure that is supportive to the development
of insurance business through the following 3 initiatives.

1

Developing and Improving Professional Standard of Insurance Personnel
in order to ensure that insurance system has enough qualified personnel to drive the business
through the following activities.

Development of Insurance Knowledge
The OIC has developed curriculum for insurance personnel inside and outside of the organization
1. Thailand Insurance Leadership Program:
		The objective of this program is to develop
senior executives in insurance business and in private
and government agencies to have vision, knowledge
and understanding on insurance, risk management,
leadership with morality and to improve knowledge
on creative management to lead the organization to
success in accordance with situation and changes in
political, economic and social condition of the world
including the establishment of network and relationships
between the students to ensure that they are able to perform coordination works consistently and to develop
insurance as a strong economic system of the country. In 2017, the OIC Advance Insurance Institute organized
the 7th training course 2017 for 98 trainees on August 18, 2017. The event was chaired by Dr. Somchai Sajjapongse,
Permanent Secretary for Finance who also gave a lecture on “Government Policy and the Roles of Insurance in
National Economic Development”.
		 Class 7/2017 of Thailand Insurance Leadership Program included the followings activities.
		 1. Lecture and discussion
			 Lecture, discussion, exchange of views and direct experience by experts who attended the training.
The course emphasizes group participation in making inquiries, expressing opinions and exchanging experiences
among the speakers and the trainers. The program comprised of 8 courses as follow:
			 Chapter 1: Insurance and Pro-active Economic Development at national and international level.
			 Chapter 2: Financial policy, investment for the country’s economic development and opportunities
of Thai business in ASEAN.
			 Chapter 3: Upgrading Thai general insurance to be a driving factor of national mission.
			 Chapter 4: Insurance digital innovation.
			 Chapter 5: The challenges in life insurance business and changes in Thai society.
			 Chapter 6: Building strategy and vision of leader in digital age.
			 Chapter 7: Building corporate governance and business operation in digital age.
			 Chapter 8: Contemporary issues.
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2. Academic Activity: Group Project Reporting
			 The curriculum requires the students to prepare group project report in the proposal for
amendment of insurance law, relating to financial risk. The concept is divided into the following 7 groups.
			 Group 1 “The use of insurance as a tool for sustainable risk management for the government sector”
			 Group 2 “Prevention and Suppression of Insurance Fraud.
			 Group 3 “Roles of Insurance Business in Supporting/Solving and Providing remedy to the
Country’s Economic Problem.”
			 Group 4 “Opportunity and Challenges of Senior Insurance Product”
			 Group 5 “Insurance in the Age of Digital Disruption”
			 Group 6 “Opportunity and the Linkage of Healthcare Business and Insurance Business in CLMV”
			 Group 7 “The Promotion and Improvement in Sustainable Creation of Public Knowledge on
Finance and Insurance”
		 3. Study Tours In the Country and Overseas
			 Took a study tour to visit the Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC), the consumer protection
supervisory agency and insurance companies in Australia such as Allied Insurance Australia Company, Insurance
Australian Group Limited and Insurance Australia Group Limited, Australia between November 9-15, 2017.
			 Took a study tour to Sa Kaew Province to visit the Royal Initiated Projects under the “Chaipattana
Foundation” at Passakornsiwit School, Mueang District, Sa Kaeo Province to attend a lecture on economic
overview and investment and business opportunities in the border province of Sa Kaeo. The team also presented
equipment to be used for repairing the roof of the school’s training building and donated 150,000 Baht to the
training center. The group also took a study tour to Prachinburi Province to learned about the risk management
system of the Double A Public Company Limited and Chao Phya Abhaibhubejhr Hospital between December
15-16. 2017.
2. Insurance Supervisory Curriculum: ISC
		 The OIC developed to create knowledge on insurance, risk management and code of conduct for
insurance regulators that can be applied to insurance regulatory works. The course was designed for low, middle
and senior level executives and divided into 2 parts, i.e.
		1. Technical Skill:
			 1.1		 Organized the following 3 ISC training courses.
					 “Using Big Data to Analyze Consumers Behavior in Insurance Business” by expert trainer,
Mr. Raymond Au and Mr. Athiratt Jarnyaharn from Allianz Ayudhya Life Assurance Public Company Limited on
November 3, 2017.
					 “Blockchain to Enable Streamlined Insurance Operation” by the trainer, Mr. Nicholus
Murray, the Founder and CTO at PassKit Inc., on December 8, 2017.
					 “Using and Managing Reinsurance” by Mr. John S. Davidson ACII Chartered Insurer on behalf
of Thaire Services Co., Ltd., on December 21, 2017.
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			 1.2		 Insurance Supervisory Curriculum (ISC) for Operation Level in E-Learning system via the OIC
Intranet for the 2 following Groups.
					 Operation Level Group No. 4/2560 used the system between February 23-April 12, 2017.
					 Operation Level Group No. 5/2560 used the system between June 5-July 17, 2017.
2. Soft Skill:
			 Developing curriculum and organized training for 3 following groups:
			 2.1		 Curriculum to develop knowledge and skills necessary for entry level and other officials of
the OIC offices in the provinces and Bangkok.
					 Organized 4 training courses on effective presentation-styled writing skill for 60 OIC’s
central office personnel and 2 couses for 106 officials of regional offices to the total of 346 OIC officials.
			 2.2		 Curriculum to develop knowledge and skills necessary for officials who are being appointed
as new executives.
					 Organized 7 training courses on digital technology to the total of 624 OIC officials and
senior executives.
			 2.3		 “Preparation and Development of the Quality of Life before Retirement”
					 Organized training on “Designing Life after Retirement 2017” for officials who are entering
retirement age between October 3-4, 2017.

Improving Capability of the Speakers of the Authorized Insurance Agents/Brokers Training
Agencies
In realizing the importance of the development of insurance intermediaries standard, the OIC has been
organizing training courses to improve capability of insurance agents and brokers with the views to develop the
knowledge standard of insurance intermediaries so that they are able to provide insurance-related advices
including insurance products correctly and properly in response to the needs of the consumers. The target
trainees are the speakers and expert of the authorized insurance agents/brokers training agencies who are the
persons who disseminate insurance knowledge and experience to the insurance intermediaries, totaling more
than 1,000 in 50 authorized insurance agents/brokers training agencies. Followings are training topics that the
OIC developed for these group of trainees.
1. Important content of the Life and Non-Life Insurance Act B.E. 2535 and the amendments and OIC
Notification on Rules and Procedures, Methods and Conditions for Issuance and the Sales of Insurance Policy
and Claim Payment Through Electronic Method B.E. 2017.
2. The Importance of Financial Planning for Retirement
3. Risk-based Capital
4. Necessary knowledge for Application of Unit-linked Agency License
5. Form and conditions or guaranteed unit-linked life insurance product
6. Property insurance
7. Marine Insurance Act
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A total number of 410 trainees who are speakers of life insurance company, non-life insurance company,
Thai Life Assurance Association, Thai Association of Insurance and Financial Advisors (THAIFA) and the Thai
Insurance Institute (TII) attended the training course, organized between March 22-13, 2017 at the Emerald
Hotel, Bangkok.

Development of Professional Handbook for Life Insurance Agents and Brokers Selling
Products Online
The OIC has developed professional handbook for life Insurance agents and brokers, selling products online
to be as a reference source of insurance knowledge, necessary for performing duties by life Insurance agents
and brokers and to develop the quality of service and product sales. The OIC also expects that the manual
would help the public to receive good advices from the professionals and the authorized insurance agents/
brokers training agencies may use the manual as a guideline for providing standardized training content. The
manual could also be used as the reference for agencies that provide education and training for interest parties,
school children college students, and the applicants of life and non-life insurance agency license.
The professional manual for life Insurance agents and brokers comprises 7 volumes and is available in
electronic files, i.e. training curriculum to prepare for applying for life insurance agent and life insurance broker
license and to prepare for the 1st, 2nd and 3rd renewal of for life insurance agent and life insurance broker license
and could be downloaded at http://www.oic.or.th/th/consumer/manual by interested parties, school children,
college students, life insurance agents and life insurance brokers and training agencies.

Best Surveyor Awards 2016
The OIC and Thai General Insurance Association organized the Best Surveyor Award 2016 (BSA) for auto
accident surveyors of non-life insurance company whose performances are outstanding and created good image
to the insurance industry on March 22, 2017 at the Eastin Grand Sathorn Hotel, Bangkok.

e-Claim Awards 2016
The OIC, the Thai General Insurance Association and the Road Accidents’ Victim Protection Co., Ltd.,
organized the e-Claim Awards 2016 and PA&HA Gateway presentation ceremony to present a total of 175 awards
to hospitals and a network of rescue foundations, non life insurance companies and related parties from all
over the country who have the best systems to record information on auto insurance claim payment (e-Claim)
The event was organized in order to promote the use of e-Claim as an efficient and standardized system to
provide service to the victims of road accidents. The event was organized on March 29, 2017 at the Swissotel
Le Concorde Hotel, Bangkok.

2

Strengthening Research and IT Capability in order to pave way for the setting up of
insurance central database and information network system that can support the operation of
regulatory agencies, insurance companies, network agencies and the public as follows.

1) Conducted a study and prepared for the development of the Insurance Bureau System as an insurance
information center whose role is to support the regulatory works and operations of insurance company such as
market conduct, claim process, insurance reserve projection, risk management and premium rating which will
be liberalized in the future. The goal is to ensure that insurance company has a sound management system
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and is trusted by the overall related industry both in Thailand and overseas. So far, the development of database
for general insurance by the contractor has been completed.
On August 28, 2017, the Thai General Insurance Association and 60 general insurance companies signed
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) to exchange insurance information (IBS). Under the agreement, these
non-life insurance companies will send information relating to underwriting and claim payment to the OIC
according to the related OIC Order and Notification of the Insurance Commissioner, starting on the date, specified
in those notifications for the new businesses and the past 5 years information on January 1, 2018 and January
15, 2018, respectively.
After this, the OIC shall consider sending non-life insurance information, deemed beneficial to the
development of non-life insurance business to Thai General Insurance Association. Such information shall not
be personal data of the insured, the beneficiaries and the persons, eligible for claim payment. The signing of
the IBS Memorandum of Understanding between Thai General Insurance Association and 60 general insurance
companies, with the OIC as the witness was a successful effort to develop the IBS system for the industry. The
OIC expects similar effort in the life insurance industry later on after the non-life system is stable and
implemented for a certain period of time.
2) Development of Reinsurance Database of Non-life insurance companies. The project to develop
reinsurance database system of non-life insurance companies was initiated in order to use the information to
analyze and assess the current overview of reinsurance by Non-life insurance companies and to project its future
trends effectively and efficiently. This effort is very important for the promotion and development of insurance
and reinsurance as well as the creation of public trust on insurance system. The OIC has developed the User
Acceptance Test (UAT) and conducted the Industry Wide Test (IWT) among the Non-life insurance companies
already. The OIC is now in the process of using the collected information to improve, develop and correct all
the deficiencies of the system before actual application. Currently, the system developer is improving and
correcting the system according to the views and recommendations from the business to ensure its improved
effectiveness.

3

Promoting Insurance as Risk Management Tool. In order to urge the government to
promote the use of insurance as the risk management tool, the OIC has taken the following actions.

Promoting Insurance-related Cooperation with Various Agencies as Follows.
1. Signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
with the Transport Co., Ltd., on March 29, 2017 to
promote insurance knowledge and incentives and to
create public trust on public bus service all over the
country as well as to promote awareness and
understanding of insurance to staff and employees of
the Transport Co., Ltd. and to promote the public to
realize the value and benefits of building life security
and property for oneself and the family which is a part
of the effort to promote better quality of life.

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

Annual Report 2017

163

2. Signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
with the Thai Bankers Association (TBA) on June 21,
2017 in order to promote members of the TBA including
their personnel to conduct sales offering of insurance
products according to the law and to promote the
effort to create understanding on insurance, finance
and investment among the members of the TBA so
that they can increase professional capability and
efficiency, including the public relations campaigns and
the conducting activities that are beneficial to the OIC,
TBA’s member banks, the public, society and the
country.
3. The OIC received the honor of Pol. Gen. Adul
Saengsingkeo, the Minister of Social Development and
Human Security who presided and witnessed the signing
of the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between
the OIC and the Ministry of Social Development and
Human Security by Mrs. Napa Setthakorn, the Deputy
Permanent Secretary of the Minister of Social
Development and Human Security on September 4,
2017. The OIC and the Minister of Social Development
and Human Security by the Department of
Empowerment of Persons with Disabilities and the
Department of Children and Youth will join efforts to create knowledge and understanding on insurance to the
persons with disabilities, children and youth, officials and related personnel and to persuade them to realize
the benefits of creating security for their lives and families and to use insurance as the risk management tool.

Adjustment of Insurance Premium Rate and Protection for Public Bus Insurance
The OIC signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Bangkok Mass Transit Authority of Thailand
in order to use insurance as a tool to reduce the risks, involving with public buses, operated by the BMTA as a
comprehensive package and to create confidence among the BMTA bus passengers that they are well under
insurance protection.
The OIC and BMTA had worked together to set the directions for underwriting process, product features
and pricing for the BMTA bus insurance. According to the new agreement, the amount of death, physical injury
or health related coverage will be increased from the original 750,000 Baht/person to 1,000,000 Baht/person.
Under this protection plan, passengers of BMTA public bus and the third party who are injured or dead will get
a compensation of 1,000,000 Baht/person and compensation for loss of property at 1,000,000 Baht/incident.
According to the plan, after the insurance companies are selected, the OIC shall invite the representatives of
the companies to discuss the detail of underwriting and claim management process in order to ensure that
claim payment will be quickly, correctly and fairly managed. The OIC would also dispatch OIC and insurance
company representatives to provide insurance knowledge and training course on claim management to BMTA
employees before the beginning of the insurance contract.

164

Annual Report 2017

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

Annual Crop Insurance Project
In response to the resolution of the Cabinet on June 27, 2017 to approve the implementation of annual
rice crop insurance in order to provide the rice farmers of the designated areas of 25 million Rai a tool to
manage the natural disaster risks, the OIC approved the annual rice crop insurance policy, developed in a form
and underwriting criteria for rice crop insurance 2017. According to this insurance plan, the premium would be
reduced from 100 Baht/Rai to 90 Baht/Rai or 97.37 Baht/Rai (Inclusive of revenue stamp and tax) for the entire
designated area. The government subsidizes the premium at 61.37 Baht/Rai (Inclusive of VAT and revenue stamp)
and the Bank of Agriculture and Agricultural Cooperatives (BAAC) will subsidize the rest of the premium payment
of 36 Baht/Rai for the rice farmers who are borrowers of the BAAC. The plan is for the year 2017. The OIC shall
share information with all related agencies such as BAAC and TGIA to ensure a quick and efficient claim
management process.
Protection according to policy schedule. The annual rice crop insurance
scheme provides protection against 7 types of natural disasters, i.e., 1) flood
or heavy rainfall, 2) drought, 3) storm or typhoon, 4) cold or frost, 5) hail
storm, 6) fire and 7) pest or plague. The protection for the losses increased
to 1,260 Baht/Rai from 1,111 Baht/Rai and the protection for pest and plague
increased to 630 Baht/Rai from 555 Baht/Rai. The farmers could buy protection
right after growing the crop until the last day of sales offering but not later
than August 31, 2017 in all regions, except the south where the last date to
buy protection is December 15, 2017. The OIC would quickly provide
information of the project systematically with related agencies such as BAAC
and Thai General Insurance Association which is beneficial to claim payment
process.
Information on annual rice crop insurance as of January 5, 2018 showed that the total insured area was
26.11 million Baht and the total premium income was more than 2,350 million Baht. The top 5 provinces under
the insurance plan are Surin, Roi Et, Ubon Ratchathani, Nakhon Ratchasima and Sisaket.

Promoting the Use of Insurance As a Tool to Solve Traffic Problem
The OIC has promoted the use of insurance system
as a tool to solve traffic problem under the project called
“In case of collision, take photo and separate. No need
to wait” with the cooperation of the National Police
Office and Thai General Insurance Association. The goal
is to facilitate the efforts to solve traffic problem in
Bangkok and the suburb areas. The launch of the project
was held on March 17, 2017 at the Meeting Room of the
Metropolitan Police Headquarters in which 41 non-life
insurance companies joined the event.
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Tax Incentive for Health Insurance
The Cabinet has approved a tax incentive measure in order to motivate more people to buy health
insurance coverage and to lessen the government’s burden on public health care cost. As the result, the
Ministerial Rule was issued by Minister of Finance on December 1, 2017 and published in the Government
Gazette on December 7, 2017. Under this tax incentive scheme, the insured who bought health insurance is
entitled to use the actual amount of paid health insurance premium but not more than 15,000 Baht for personal
income tax deduction. However, the total amount of tax deductible when combining with all other life insurance
premium (s) must not exceed 100,000 Baht and the tax deductible health premium must be paid ever since
January 1, 2017 onward.

4

Improving Regulatory Capacity: In order to improve regulatory capacity, the OIC has taken
the following action.

Drafting of Insurance Law
The Office of Insurance Commission has improved the insurance law by entirely redrafting both the Life
Insurance Act, B.E…..and the Non-life Insurance Act, B.E……with the main goal to address the current issue of law
enforcement and to improve the regulatory standard to be in line with international standard and those of
other financial sector’s regulatory agencies. The Office has already submit such draft law to the Insurance
Commission. The content of the drafts have been divided into the following groups of related provisions.
Group 1: The group of provisions that deal directly with public protection
1. Add a provision relating to insurance fraud.
2. Improve the provision relating to the performing of duties of insurance agents and broker to be stricter
and improve the penalty clause to be more suitable.
3. Improve loss adjustment issue by revising the law to require individual loss adjuster to act on behalf
of a juristic person, licensed by the Insurance Commissioner to be a loss adjuster and improving the penalty
clause to be more suitable.
Group 2: Group of provisions relating to improving stability and security of insurance company.
1. Company’s board members and person with management authority must have suitable qualifications
and must be approved by the Insurance Commissioner.
2. The source of fund must be transparent. The revision requires Company to report amount of
shareholding from 5% and the holding of more than 10% shares must get an approval.
3. Company must maintain minimum amount of capital and the Board can approve increase in capital
fund to be maintained if it appears that the Company is exposed to high risks or expected to have more risks
in the future.
4. To ensure that companies are well-prepared in terms of operational system and personnel, the
Insurance Commission shall have the power to prescribe criteria, methods and conditions for the company to
comply in various areas of business. The companies must be ready to have the actuary appointed by them and
the auditor, certified by the Commissioner.
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5. Improve regulatory measures that are problematic and depend less on discretion when determining
the issue in order to ensure that the use of power by the government agency is transparent.
Group 3: Group of provisions relating to the promotion of merger and acquisition of business operation
and liability of board members and person with management authority in the case of seeking undue interest or
illegal performing of duties in a way that affects the company, the insured and the public.
So far, the scrutiny of Group 1 draft by the Council of State has already been completed on November
30, 2017 and is in the process of proof-reading before returning it to the Cabinet who would then further submit
to the National Legislative Assembly according to the legislative procedure.
As for the Group 2 law, the OIC, meanwhile, is in the process of collecting views and recommendations,
derived from the hearing session with the business sector before submitting it to the Ministry of Finance and
the National Legislative Assembly, respectively.

Development of Marine Insurance Law
The OIC has moved ahead to create understanding
on the draft marine insurance law, B.E……..by organizing
a seminar on “The First Marine Insurance Law in
Thailand” in order to provide knowledge on the draft
marine law to the stakeholders and to allow them to
express views and recommendations that are useful
for the improvement of such law. This law would be
the first marine insurance law in Thailand which is a
major legal development in Thailand. The law will
become an important mechanism in improving Thai economic potentiality and competitiveness of Thai marine
insurance and transport in the world arena. The move would also help build confidence among the operators
and foreign investors as well as improving the effectiveness of insurance regulation in Thailand. The seminar was
held on September 15, 2017 at the Swissotel Le Concorde Hotel, Bangkok. Participants included OIC executives,
representatives of the Court of Justice, General Insurance Association, the Thai Broker Association, Marine
Department, Department of Treaties and Legal Affairs, Thai National Shippers Council, Thai Ship Owners Association,
Bangkok Shipowners & Agents Association and the Thai International Freight Forwarders Association and members
of the public, totaling 250.
The OIC has proposed the draft of the Marine Insurance Act and the Insurance Commission has approved
and submitted it to be approved by the Minister of Finance. After that it will be propose for a review by the
Cabinet according to the legal procedure.

Insurance Dispute Resolution
Type
Insurance service center (ISC)
Insurance Dispute Resolution Center
Arbitration
Total

No. of Complaint Cases
12,325
163
708
13,196

Resolved
9,740
130
681
10,551

%
79.02
79.25
96.18
79.96

Information: As of December 31, 2017
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The total number of complaint cases between January 1, 2017 - December 31, 2017 was 13,196 cases and
the number of resolved cases was 10,551 cases or 79.96%.
Note: The number of complaint cases at the arbitrator level was 1,106 cases of which 669 cases were dispute
cases, received in 2017 and 437 cases were carried forward from the previous year. Some of the carried forward
and the cases received in 2017 were the cases that are proceeding according to the steps which are beyond
control such as awaiting court result, the prosecution power is not complete, the dispute parties want to delay
the case and the related parties (dispute parties, arbitrators, witness, etc.) have conflict of schedule, thus, causing
a delay that was not caused by the case official. Therefore, a number of 398 cases could not be included in
the above table.

The Opening of OIC Office in Mae Hong Son Province
The OIC is a government agency and has the
duties to regulate and promote the operation of
insurance business as well as to protect public’s
insurance rights and to ensure that the insured public
receive good and efficient services and have access to
insurance. In the past, the people of Mae Hong Son
had a lot of difficulties to make contact in order to
obtain consultation, information or to file insurancerelated complaint because there was no OIC Office in
the province. The OIC, therefore, established the office
by using the space in the Mae Hong Son Municipality
Building. The Mae Hong Son OIC Office was officially
opened on January 30, 2017.

Panel Discussion on Insurance Dispute Resolution Results
On the first anniversary of the Insurance Dispute
Resolution Center in April 28, 2017, the OIC organized
a panel discussion and a meeting to review and discuss
the results of insurance dispute resolution in which an
exchange of views on the challenges and obstacles in
performing the duties in the past year were discussed
in order to find ways to improve the works of the
Insurance Dispute Resolution Center. At the event, it
was disclosed that the total number of dispute cases
that entered the dispute resolution process to be resolved by external experts was 160 cases of which 125
cases or 78.13% were settled. The event was held on May 16, 2017 at the meeting room of the OIC Advanced
Insurance Institute (OICAII).

OIC Arbitrators Seminar 2017
The OIC organized a seminar for the arbitrators who registered with the OIC in order to improve the
efficiency in the process of insurance dispute resolution cases by arbitration method so that it is trusted and
accepted by the insured and those who are entitled to file claim under insurance contract, insurance companies,
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insurance industry and the public. The event was also held to provide knowledge on insurance related laws
and regulations, their amendments and new insurance conditions that can be used in the determination of
dispute cases that are accepted into the dispute settlement by arbitration process. The event was held between
November 5-6, 2017 at the Chao Phraya Park Hotel, Bangkok and 80 persons attended.

Report the Group Accident and Catastrophe by Electronic Method
The OIC has prepared to provide quick and prompt service to the public when incidents occur during New
Year Holidays by setting up the platform to develop the efficiency of group accident and catastrophe reporting
by electronic method for both the Life Insurance Company and non-Life Insurance Company and in both OIC’s
central and provincial offices. The OIC Secretary-General has appointed the Group Accident and Catastrophe
Supervision and Assistance Committee, chaired by the Deputy Secretary-General for Legal Affairs and Right
Protection. The OIC has organized a meeting to clarify the detail of the report to representatives of the Life
Insurance Company and non-Life Insurance Company. This report format will be effective as of December 28,
2017.

Preparation for the Financial Assessment Program (FSAP)
The OIC has worked with the World Bank to prepare for the Financial Sector Assessment Program (FSAP)
as follows.
1) Activities Jointly Implemented with the World Bank
		 In 2017, the OIC and the World Bank implemented the Financial Sector Assessment Program (FSAP) in
order to assess the regulatory process of the OIC and to find deficiencies as well as providing recommendation
for improving insurance regulation as follows.
		 1.1) 1st Mission : Between February 20 - March 3, 2017: convened a meeting with the OIC SecretaryGeneral, OIC Executives and officials and joined the OIC Working Group to conduct self-assessment in order to
evaluate the OIC’s insurance regulation under the ICPs and prepared the Self Assessment Report. The team
worked closely with the OIC to get information and additional views in order to ensure that the report is
accurate and complete.
		 1.2) 2nd Mission: Between May 29 - June 2, 2017: Joined the OIC to lay out a plan to improve and
develop the OIC insurance regulation process to meet the international standard (Action plan). The team also
met to exchange experience with a regulatory agency from Turkey. The action plan divided into 2 following
parts.
			 1. Short-Term Projects: These are projects that can be completed within 1 year and affect the
Financial Sector Assessment Program (FSAP) level.
			

2. Long-term Project: Long-term project to develop long-term insurance regulation plan.

		 1.3) The OIC Working Group coordinated with the consultants from the World Bank to provide opinions
and additional information and to prepare the last self-assessment report and action plan which has been
delivered to the OIC in August 2017.
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2) Activities Implemented by the OIC
		 2.1) Appointed FSAP Committee and Working Group in order to prepare for FSAP assessment on March
10, 2017 as follows.
			

The FSAP Policy Committee

			

The FSAP Task Force

			

7 FSAPs Sub-Working Groups as follows.

Sub-Working Groups

G1

Supervisory Objectives and the Supervisor

G2

Insurer Licensing, Suitability and Control

G3

Insurer Governance and Internal Control

G4

Supervisory Process, Preventive Action, Enforcement and Winding-up

G5

Prudential Standards, Valuation and Reinsurance

G6

Market Conduct and Consumer Protection

G7

Group Supervision, Cross Border Cooperation, Crisis Management and AML/CFT
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		 2.2) The Financial Sector Assessment Program (FSAP) Task Force and the World Bank consultants
jointly considered the self-assessment report and short-term and long-term action plan, received from the World
Bank and joined hands with all of the 7 sub-working groups applied content of such report to the drafting of
OIC FSAP action plan with the focus on the implementation which could be completed within 1 year, including
the prioritizing work flows under the time frame and available resources in order to ensure that all lines of works
could perform their duties effectively and complete the works on time for the FSAP in Q4 of 2018.

ISO 9001: 2015 Certification
The OIC received 9001-2552 (ISO 9001:2008) from the (Management System Certification Institute (Thailand):
MASCI) for the scope of “Issuance of licenses for life insurance agents, non-life insurance agents, life and non-life
insurance brokers” on August 11, 2011 and renewed for 3 more years untile August 10, 2017. Then, on July 13,
2017, the OIC undertook the re-assessment and was certified with ISO 9001:2015 for 3 more years until August
10, 2020. The new certification focuses on the operational efficiency and risk-based thinking as well as the
inclusion of Plan-Do-Check-Act (PDCA cycle) into all level of works in the organization. The OIC focused on the
development of service quality regularly and concretely. The Quality Policy and Quality Management Committee
is responsible for setting up quality policy and objectives. The Quality Management Committee is responsible
for conducting a study and analysis of a process to issue agent/broker license in order to develop operational
and managerial systems according to the requirements of the ISO 9001:2015, including the preparation and
improvement of Quality Manual and related documents.

The Implementation of New Organizational Structure
The OIC has completed the improvement of organization and job position structure in order to enable the
OIC to complete its missions efficiently and pro-actively and to increase the overall capability. The new
organizational structure has been approved by the Insurance Commission at the end of 2016.
In 2017, the OIC must implement the new organizational structure in a proper and effective manner by
focusing on transparency, fairness and the right of all officials. The recruitment of officials into the positions
under the new structure has been done through very careful screening procedures and criteria under scope of
strict rules and regulations to ensure that all of the selected officials have proper qualifications. The selection
and appointment of senior executives include assistant Secretary-General, Senior Department Director, Senior
Regional Director and the Qualified expert were completed in March 2017, followed by the selection and
appointment of officials at the levels of director at expert and operational levels which were completed on
November 30, 2017.
Moreover, in order to support the operation under the new organizational and positional structure, the
OIC has conducted an analysis on its workforce in order to create a workforce that is clear and adequate to
achieve the missions of the OIC. Currently, it is being submitted for a consideration and approval of the Insurance
Commission.

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
The Office of the Insurance Commission (OIC) which is a government agencies whose main missions are to
regulate and promote the development of insurance business to ensure that its operation is efficient, transparent,
trustworthy and protective of the insurance right and benefits of the insured realizes the importance of Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM) and internal control which are important factors for moving towards the goal of corporate
governance. Moreover, as environmental change has occurred due to both internal and external factors all the
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time, the OIC is confident that the efficient Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) and internal control systems
would help the OIC to pro-actively steer the organization forward to achieve the objectives and goals efficiently
and effectively.
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) of the OIC is under the supervision of the Risk management and Internal
Control Committee, chair by the OIC Secretary-General. The Committee’s duties are to supervise the
implementation of policies and risk management framework in the Office that includes strategic, financial, legal
and operational risks, to monitor and control the risk management of the organization at an acceptable level
and to consider the adequacy of risk management vis a vis the changing situation.
In 2017, the OIC required all lines of works to conduct assessment of the risks that have significant
implication to the operation of the Office in order to use the findings to develop proper risk management and
internal control plans that are able to address the root cause of the problem. Some of the implemented
activities included the identification of Key Risk Indicator (KRI), preparation of follow-up and assessment reports
to be submitted to the risk management and internal control committee and the Audit Committee in every
quarter. The OIC also set up the Business Continuity Management Working Group to prepare and to enable the
Office to operate according to the missions in response to the expectation of the stakeholders on a continuing
basis. The Office also develop the Business Continuity Management System in order to prepare for the incurrence
of any emergency incident and has tested emergency plan under various scenarios regularly every year to ensure
that the risk management process would help support the operation of the OIC to achieve the objectives under
the strategic master plan properly and effectively.
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Operational Performance under the OIC
Key Risk Indicator in the Period of
12 Months in 2017
The result of the evaluation on the operational performance under 12 key risk indicators (KRI) in 2017 has
the total weighted value at 4.32 (Full score of 5) as follows.
Performance in 12 months in 2017
KRI

Weight Resulted Weighted
(%)
Score
score

Strategy 1: Promoting the creation of knowledge to the public to increase liquidity of the market and to
create trust and stability to insurance system of the country (30%)
1. Ratio of the success in promoting public knowledge and understand on
10
5
0.50
insurance.
2. Ratio of knowledge and understanding on insurance (Assessed by external
20
5
1.00
agency)
Strategy 2: Development of operational standard and system to ensure that the missions are implemented
quickly, cost-effectively and supportive to the transferring of managerial roles within the
organization (20%)
3. Level of success in development of operational standard of the OIC
5
5
0.25
4. Level of success of human resource standard development
5
2.4
0.12
5. % of satisfaction of the OIC service receivers(Assessed by external agency)
10
4
0.40
Strategy 3: Building and expanding partner network to increase growth and liquidity in the industry (10%)
6. Leve of success in actual creation of cooperation and activities
5
5
0.25
7. Level of success in development of criteria for increasing the ratio of foreign
5
5
0.25
shareholding and the study on the condition of insurance business according to
the guideline of policy recommendation relating to insurance business structure
Strategy 4: Development of Regulatory and examination system on stability, practical conduct and protection
of insurance benefits of the public in order to create public trust on insurance system (30%)
8. Level of success to improve the stability of insurance companies to prescribed
10
5
0.50
criteria
9. Level of success of the development of regulatory and examination systems.
10
5
0.50
10. Level of success the number of insurance disputes settled by settlement/
5
4
0.20
compromise and arbitration, compared with the total number of dispute cases.
11. % of satisfaction of those who received services relating to settlement of
5
3
0.15
insurance dispute cases.
Strategy 5: Development of technology capability and database that led to the improvement in insurance
knowledge among stakeholders in all regions of the country (10%)
12. Level of success in development of IT system of the OIC
10
2.0
0.20
Total 12 KRI
100
4.32
Note: 1. Score of each KRI has 5 levels of score from 1-5
2. The value weighted score of all KRI is not more than 5
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Results of a Survey on Service Quality of
the OIC in the 12 Month Period of 2017
The Office of the Insurance Commission hired an outside institute to conduct a public survey to learn
about the level of satisfaction of those who have used the OIC services since 2010. The purpose is to use the
feedback of the service recipients to improve the quality of the OIC services in order that they are more responsive
to the needs and expectation of the service recipients. The survey results were also used as one of the agency’s
KPIs. In 2017, the OIC hired the Information Provider and Consultant Co., Ltd., to conduct the survey.
The survey was conducted among a total of 2,063 OIC service users, in both the central and the provincial
areas and covered 3 areas, i.e., fairness, service quality and access to service, 4 procedures, i.e., 1) individual
agency/broker licensing and renewal service, 2) corporate agency/broker licensing and renewal service, 3) the
preliminary claim filing process and 4) insurance dispute resolutio. During the period of 12 months in 2017, the
OIC service was rated very satisfactory or 4.60 out of 5.
Areas of Services

Overview in
2017

The OIC Office OIC Provincial
(Ratchada)
Offices

1. Agent/broker (ordinary individual) license issuing/
renewal

4.69

4.79

4.57

2. Agent/broker (corporate) license issuing/renewal

4.56

4.56

-

3. Preliminary compensation by Road Accident Victim
Compensation Fund

4.70

4.66

4.71

4.43

4.30

4.58

4.20
4.23

4.20
4.04

4.80

4.60

4.58

4.62

4. Insurance dispute settlement
4.1) Dispute settlement by competent office
4.2) Dispute settlement by conciliator (Insurance
Dispute Conciliation Center)
4.3) Dispute settlement by arbitrators
Overview

Note: 1. Services 1 and process 4.2 are provided only at the OIC Office Ratchada only.
2. Information was processed by SPSS (Statistical Package for the Social Sciences for windows)
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Direction and Trend of
Insurance Business in 2018
In 2017, the growth of insurance business in Thailand was higher than in the previous year due to the
government promotion through tax deduction incentive for health insurance in which the insured could use
health insurance premium they paid as personal income tax deduction at the actual amount but not more than
15,000 Baht. The total business growth was 4.76%, in which the Life insurance business grew at a satisfactory
level of 6.52% and the non-life insurance business grew by 0.26%, compared with the same period of the
previous year.
The Office of National Economic and Social Development Board forecast that in 2018, the Thai economy
will grow at the rate of 3.6% to 4.6% because of the accelerating recovery of world economy that would lead
to improvement in exports and the recovery of manufacturing sector. Other positive factors include the
government spending and government investment projects and the clearer progress in the government
investment projects, the recovery of private investment, continuing growth in key economic segments and
improvement in employment and income base of the public.
The OIC used the Box-Jenkins method to forecast the trend of the gross direct premium earning of Thai
insurance business in 2018, it is expected that at the end of 2018 the gross direct premium income of insurance
business will be about 867,582 million Baht or an increase of 5.97% in which 637,877 million Baht or an increase
of 6.273% will come from life insurance business while 229,705 million Baht or an increase of 5.16% will be
from non-life insurance business.
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Audit Committee’s
Report
In 2017, the Audit Committee comprised 4 members who were appointed by expertise by the OIC and
independent members with Mrs. Tarisa Watanagase as Chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Prasan Chuapanich,
Mr. Phaiboon Siripanoosatien and Mrs. Wanee Thasanamontien as Committee Auditors and Ms. Kornnis Boonchoey,
Senior Director of Internal Inspection, as Secretary of the Audit Committee.
Later, there were some changes in the membership of the Audit Committee because all of the members
the term in office of all the Insurance Commission’s members by expertise ended and replaced by newly
appointed members on October 30, 2017. The 4 newly appointed members of the Audit Committee were
Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich as Chairman, Ms. Wiboonlasana Ruamraksa, Mr. Vachara Tuntariyanond, Mrs. Wanee
Thasanamontien as members and Ms. Kornnis Boonchoey, Senior Director of Internal Affairs Audit Department
as member and Secretary was effective on November 7, 2017.
The Audit Committee members have perform their duties that cover the scope, duties and responsibilities
according to the Charter of the Audit Committee and as assigned by the Insurance Commission. In 2017, the
Audit Committee held 5 meetings. The new audit committee met once after taking the office with the Internal
Control Department, Administration Department and the Secretariat of the Risk Management Committee. The
Audit Committee members perform their duties independently and have received good cooperation from all
departments. The performance of the Audit Committee can be summarized as follows:
1. Reviewing the effectiveness of internal operations concerning 2016 quarterly and yearly financial reports
before submitting to the Insurance Commission to ensure that the financial report preparation process was
correct, credible and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting standard and in compliance with
the law and properly disclosing financial information as well as providing observations, recommendations and
acknowledging correctional guideline in order to maximize the benefit for the organization.
2. Review the compliance with the guideline for corporate governance of the Office of Insurance
Commission and provided recommendations to review and improve the OIC corporate governance guideline in
order to promote the operation of the Office to achieve the goals and missions and to create trust among the
stakeholders, based on the sustainable growth of the OIC.
3. Reviewing the risk management and internal control systems by holding meetings with the Internal
Auditor and the Secretariat of the Risk Management Committee and Internal Control Department, including the
review of the report on internal control assessment according to the requirement of the Office of the Auditor
General. The OIC has in place the risk management plans and risk assessment process that cover major risks
and could control the impacts that may affect the achievement of goals to the acceptable level. The Audit
Committee viewed that the OIC has risk management and internal control system that is adequate, will be able
to achieve the objectives and goals and complies with rules and regulation and policies of the Office.
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4. Review the charter of the Audit Committee to make it more in accordance with the organizational
environment, proper, modern and on par with the international standard of internal control practice. The
improved charter was effective on January 1, 2017.
5. Reviewing to ensure that the internal control department is independent and conduct the internal
control works according to international standard and efficiently by considering the scope of works, duties,
responsibilities, workforce and budget of the internal control department. Other activities included the reporting
of 2017 audit results, the following up on major corrections according to the audit report and providing
recommendations for development and improvement of internal audit works. In 2018, the OIC has plan to
implement the project to ensure and to improve the quality of internal control works by external agency in
order to ensure that the performance of internal control function is correct, complete and in consistence with
internal control standard as well as to increase the trust of the stakeholders and reviewing the Charter of the
Audit Committee and approving the 2018 audit plan.
In performing the duties and responsibilities, prescribed in the charter independently, the Audit Committee
viewed that the Office of Insurance Commission has an internal control and risk management systems that are
adequate and has no significant shortcoming and has the criteria and practical guidelines in accordance with the
corporate governance laid out by the OIC and financial report which has been prepared according to the
generally accepted accounting standard and disclosed important information transparently and reliably.

(Mr. Prasan Chuaphanich)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
21 March 2018
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Auditor’s
Report
To The Insurance Commission
Opinion
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements
of the Insurance Commission which comprise the financial position, as at December 31, 2017, the statements
of revenues and expenses, the statements of changes in capital and statements of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion, except the impacts of issues, mentioned in the
the Basis for Conditional Opinion, the above mentioned financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Insurance Commission as at December 31, 2017, and the financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.
Basis for Conditional Opinion
As stated in Note to Financial Statement 4.18: Personnel-related Expenses, Remuneration Based on
Servicing Cost in the Past and 4.13: Non-current Liability, Deferred Remuneration of Service Costs in the Past
according to the resolution of the Insurance Commission to allocate the remuneration of service costs in the
past as additional pension benefit for personnel, who were transferred from the Department of Insurance and
the Ministry of Commerce at an amount of 679.05 million Baht by allocating at the rate of 10% of the total
amount per year. The recognition of the remuneration of service costs in the past as personnel-related expense
in parallel with the deferred remuneration of service costs in the past started in 2010. Such expense was
provisional and may not be reimbursable and the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has reported such
uncertainty in 2016 in the Auditor’s Report, dated May 22, 2017. However, the Office of the Insurance Commission
(OIC) has reimbursed a total of 23.37 million Baht in 2011, causing the total balance of the remuneration of
service costs in the past to be at 477.31 million Baht. In 2017, while such provisional status still persisted, the
OIC recorded the recognition of a total of 67.50 million Baht remuneration of service costs in the past and
showed them as personnel-related expenses in the statement of incomes and expenses, along with the deferred
remuneration of service costs in the past, totaling 67.50 million Baht, plus 9.28 million Baht interest from bank
deposit account, causing the balance of the remuneration of service costs in the past to be at 554.09 million
Bah and shown non-current liability from uncertainty in the financial statement. As a result, the personnel
related expenses in the aggregated statement of incomes and expenses for the year ended as at December 31,
2017 to increase by 67.50 million Baht, the deferred remuneration of service costs in the past increased by
554.09 million Baht and the amount of accumulated income higher than expense in the portion of capital
decreased by 540.83 million Baht according to the financial statement as at December 31, 2017.
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand conducted the audit in accordance with the standards on
auditing. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of the Office of the
Auditor General of Thailand’s report. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand is independent of the
Insurance Commission in accordance with the State Audit Standards issued by the State Audit Commission and
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants determined by the Federation of Accounting Professions under
the Royal Patronage of his Majesty the King that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements, and the
Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
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standard and requirements. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand believes that the audit evidence the
Office of the Auditor General of Thailand has obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the
Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion.
Other Information
The management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.
The management expects to provide the annual report to the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand after
the date of this auditor’s report.
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with the audit of the financial statements, the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or the Office of
the Auditor General of Thailand’s knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
When the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand reads the annual report, if the Office of the Auditor
General of Thailand concludes that there is a material misstatement therein, the Office of the Auditor General
of Thailand is required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with financial reporting standards, and for such internal control as the management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, in matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate or to cease operations, or is unable to
continue as a going concern.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
The Office of Auditor General of Thailand’s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with standards
on auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with the standards on auditing, the Office of Auditor General of Thailand
exercises professional judgment and maintains professional skepticism throughout the audit. The Office of the
Auditor General of Thailand also:
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Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the internal control system.
Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
Concludes on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained; whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern. If the Office of the Auditor General
of Thailand concludes that a material uncertainty exists, the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand is required
to draw attention in the auditor’s report of the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the Office of the Auditor
General of Thailand’s opinion. The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report of the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand.
However, future events or conditions may cause the cessation to continue as a going concern.
Evaluates the overall presentation, statement and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand communicates with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
identifies during the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand’s audit

(Therdpong Pongsaksee)
Director of Financial Audit and Supply Management Office No.3

(Ms. Bupha Wiyarat)
Expert Audit Technician
The Office of the Auditor General of Thailand
May 22, 2018
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Office of Insurance Commission

Statement of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2017

Notes
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalent
Temporary investments
Receivables
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant & equipment-net
Intangible assets-net
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities
Payables
Accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Income from property donation
Reserve for medical costs of retired staff
Service Capital compensation
Other Non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Capitals transferred from the Department of Insurance
Initial capitals from the government
Incomes higher than accumulated expenses
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Unit : Baht
2016

2017

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6

868,136,308.84
4,912,169,423.57
418,960,560.54
509,223.78
8,280,858.43
8,162,455.72
6,216,218,830.88

853,853,585.77
4,060,866,435.30
406,328,590.03
616,629.93
2,742,882.97
49,817,510.55
5,374,225,634.55

4.7
4.8
4.9

278,869,594.42
56,523,745.02
1,392,500.00
336,785,839.44
6,553,004,670.32

289,595,863.25
63,949,505.75
1,345,500.00
354,890,869.00
5,729,116,503.55

4.10
4.11
4.12

9,283,095.28
36,057,325.39
21,498,667.76
66,839,088.43

7,068,060.66
37,645,305.16
13,504,986.39
58,218,352.21

4.13
4.13
4.13
4.13

2,740,370.82
61,828,371.94
554,096,082.76
828,717.00
619,493,542.52
686,332,630.95

3,534,192.88
51,790,903.83
477,310,403.35
313,690.00
532,949,190.06
591,167,542.27

4.14
4.15

120,538,099.76
100,000,000.00
5,646,133,939.61
5,866,672,039.37
6,553,004,670.32

120,538,099.76
100,000,000.00
4,917,410,861.52
5,137,948,961.28
5,729,116,503.55

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(Mr. Suthiphon Thaveechaiyagarn)
Secretary-General

(Mr. Somkiet Panha)
Assistant of the Secretary-General
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Office of Insurance Commission

Statement of Income and Expenditure
For the year ending December 31, 2017

Unit : Baht
Notes

2017

2016

Income
Contributions from insurers

3.1.1 , 4.16

1,586,461,947.18

1,537,852,109.56

Fee income from insurers

3.1.2 , 4.17

218,874,900.00

211,918,450.00

Interest income

73,591,022.97

81,022,768.66

Other income

3,306,665.61

12,091,035.50

1,882,234,535.76

1,842,884,363.72

Total Income
Expenses
Personal expenses

4.18

803,946,779.36

792,390,684.45

Operating expenses

4.19

337,956,678.31

325,648,404.81

Remunerations of the committees and subcommittees

4.20

11,608,000.00

10,903,666.67

1,153,511,457.67

1,128,942,755.93

728,723,078.09

713,941,607.79

Total expenses
Incomes higher than expenses

4.21

Incomes higher than other miscellaneous expenses

-

Incomes higher than total miscellaneous expenses

728,723,078.09

713,941,607.79

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Office of Insurance Commission

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ending December 31, 2017

Unit : Baht
Capital
transferred
from the Dept
of insurance
Outstanding as at 31 December 2015
Incomes higher than expenses in 2016
Outstanding as at 31 December 2016
Incomes higher than expenses in 2017
Outstanding as at 31 December 2017

120,538,099.76

Initial Capital
from the
government
100,000,000.00

120,538,099.76

100,000,000.00

120,538,099.76

100,000,000.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Incomes higher
(lower) than
accumulated
expenses

Total Eguily

4,203,469,253.73

4,424,007,353.49

713,941,607.79

713,941,607.79

4,917,410,861.52

5,137,948,961.28

728,723,078.09

728,723,078.09

5,646,133,939.61

5,866,672,039.37
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Office of Insurance Commission

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ending December 31, 2017

Unit : Baht
2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Incomes higher than expenses
Reconciled incomes higher (lower) than expenses in the form of receivable
(payable) cash from operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Expenses from adjusted decrease of equipment use
Sale of donated equipment
Interest incomes
Cash from interest
Incomes higher than expenses before the change in operating assets and liabilities
Increase or decrease in operating assets and liabilities
Receivables (increase)
Other receivables decrease (increase)
Prepaid expenses (increase) decrease
Other current assets (increase) decrease
Other non-current assets (increase)
Payables increase (decrease)
Accrued expenses (decrease) increase
Prepaid contribution from insurance companies (decrease)
Arbitral Tribunal payment increased
Performance bond increased (decrease)
Cash received in advance increase
Deferred fine payment to the Comptroller General’s Department (decrease)
increased
Increase in reserve for medical costs of terminated staff
Increase in renumeration according to accrued service costs
Other non-current liabilities increase
Net cash from (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash outflow from short-term investment
Cash outflow from building renovation
Cash outflow from purchasing intangible assets
Cash receivable from disposal of assets
Net cash from (used in) investing activities
Cash and cash equivalent net increase
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalent at end of period 				
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2016

728,723,078.09

713,941,607.79

65,288,807.34
7.00
(1,614,770.72)
(73,591,022.97)
115,536,148.98
834,342,247.72

62,441,666.83
8,423.87
(2,341,249.62)
(81,022,768.66)
39,899,329.52
732,927,009.73

(12,631,970.51)
107,406.15
(5,537,975.46)
(290,071.18)
(47,000.00)
2,215,034.62
(1,587,979.77)
(78,000.00)
5,565,189.00
2,497,280.12
109,212.25

(524,251.20)
(248,989.41)
1,730,973.80
372,435.25
(1,071,500.00)
(10,784,934.47)
5,057,092.55
(20,000.00)
1,577,172.00
(155,996.00)
65,770.00

(100,000.00)
10,037,468.11
76,785,679.41
515,027.00
911,901,547.46

70,000.00
9,873,783.54
77,303,884.79
187,690.00
816,360,140.58

(851,302,988.27)
(36,435,991.12)
(9,879,845.00)
(897,618,824.39)
14,282,723.07
853,853,585.77
868,136,308.84

(448,657,333.90)
(33,578,586.01)
(23,094,079.00)
8,720.00
(505,321,278.91)
311,038,861.67
542,814,724.10
853,853,585.77
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Office of Insurance Commission

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ending December 31, 2017
1.

General Information
By virtue of the Insurance Commission Act, the Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has established on
September 1, 2007 by changing its status from the Department of Insurance, Ministry of Commerce. The OIC is
a state agency which is not a government agency or state enterprise and is under the supervision of the
Ministry of Finance. Its roles and responsibility is to oversee and regulate the insurance business to be in
accordance with the insurance and customer protection principles.
Office of Insurance Commission 22/79 Ratchadaphisek Rd., Chankasem, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900 Thailand.
2. Basic Preparation of Financial Statements
2.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and in accordance with the accounting system specified by the Ministry of Finance whereby the
accrual basis accounting shall be used.
2.2 Accounting period shall be the same as the calendar year, starting January 1 and ending December
31 of each year.
2.3 Accounting standards
		 The OIC has not exercised the Accounting Standards 19 on employee benefits effective January 1,
2017 since according to the Insurance Commission Act B.E. 2550, Article 19. “The OIC is not under the jurisdiction
of the Labor Protection law, the Labor Relations law, the Social Security law, and the Compensations law.
However, OIC staff and employees are to receive benefits no less than stipulated in the Labor Protection Law,
the Social Security Law and the Compensations Law”.
3. Significant Accounting Policies
The following are significant accounting policies used in the preparation of the OIC financial statements.
3.1 Recognition of revenues
		 3.1.1 Contributions from non-life and life insurance companies are recognized as revenues based on
their contribution rate specified under the Notification of the Insurance Commission Re: Criteria, Procedures, and
the Contribution rate to sent by life and non-life insurance companies to the OIC, effecting January 22, 2008.
		 3.1.2 Fee incomes are recognized as revenues once OIC receives fee payment.
		 3.1.3 Income from the annual government budget are recognized as revenues after the money has
been transferred from the Comptrollers General’s Department to the OIC account.
		 3.1.4 Interest incomes are recognized as interest accrues based on the effective rate method.
3.2 Expense recognition
		 The expenses are recognized on accrual basis.
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3.3 Land, buildings and equipment
		 3.3.1 Land are based on capital cost. Buildings and equipment are based on capital cost on the
purchase date or acquisition date deducted by the accumulated depreciation.
		 3.3.2 Buildings and equipment are recorded as assets with a service life of over 1 year and their
depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over their estimated length of service time:
			
Buildings							
20 years
			
Equipment 							
5 years
			
Vehicles and accessories				
5 years
		 3.3.3 The adjustment of a leased building is recorded as an asset and the depreciation is calculated on
a straight line basis over the period specified in the lease contract.
		 3.3.4 Equipment transferred from the Department of Insurance are stated as net on the transferred date
after deducting the depreciating cost calculated according to above-mentioned guidelines.
		 3.3.5 Equipment transferred from the Road Accident’s Victims Compensation Fund used net price as of
the date of transfer as cost of goods and calculated the depreciation according to the above criteria.
		 3.3.6 Increase in current replacement costs, will be included as capital cost of assets. Repair and
maintenance costs are recognized as expenses for a given accounting period.
3.4 Intangible assets
Intangible assets include direct expenses on the development of computer software programs as
well as expenses on the purchase of packaged computer software programs under the supervision of the OIC
that will yield economic benefits for over a year, are stated at cost less amortization. The amortization is calculated
on a straight line basis to reduce the price on the accounting books of each asset over the estimated service
life of the given assets. The leaseholds are stated at cost after deducting the accumulated amortization. The
amortization is calculated on a straight line basis over the period of the leasehold as follows:
		 Computer software
					
5 years
		 Leasehold of buildings as per actual period but not exceeding		
10 years
3.5 Materials under 5,000 baht per unit on the purchase date can be considered as expenses for the
entire amount under the accounting period.
3.6 Estimated liabilities
		 The OIC will document the estimation of liabilities when such liabilities were developed as a result
of a past incident when there is the possibility that the office will lose some economic resources to resolve
such liabilities, and when the value of such liabilities can be accurately estimated.
3.7 Non-Current liabilities
		 3.7.1 Donated Properties
			
The OIC registered donated properties as assets and liabilities under income account pending
recognition, which will then eventually be recognized as donated revenues based actual value at each accounting
period.
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		 3.7.2 Reserve for medical expenses of retired employees
			
According to the OIC regulation on medical costs of retired employees B.E. 2553, the OIC is
required to set aside reserve for medical costs of its retired employees, whereas each employee is to have 0.6%
of his or her salary deducted monthly to be pooled as the fund and the OIC is to allocate 0.4% of its annual
income prior to expense deduction to be topped up to the fund at the end of budgetary year after the Office
of State Comptroller’s audit.
			
Contribution to the retired employees’ medical expense project was recognized as expense.
		 3.7.3 Remuneration based on service costs in the past
			
The obligation of the OIC on remuneration based on service costs in the past project is under
a review by the Administrative Court. The estimated liabilities have, thus, been recognized in accordance with
the OIC’s Regulation on remuneration based on service costs in the past B.E. 2554.
3.8 Life Support Fund
		 Each employee who is the fund’s member is required to pay an amound of his income to the fund
whereas the OIC is to add an amount of money to the fund according to the fund’s regulation which is operated
by K.Master Pool Fund already registered. The amount of money added up to the fund by the OIC is to be
recognized as expenses in the financial balance.
3.9 Cash and cash equivalent means cash and bank deposit whose payback is due in a period of no
longer than 3 months from the acquired date.
3.10 Temporary investment fund means fixed bank deposit whose payback is due in 1 year after the end
of the reporting period and will be shown as current assets in the financial statement.
3.11 Long-term investment fund means a fixed bank deposit whose payback period is longer than 1 year
and is shown as non-current asset in financial statement
4. Additional information
4.1 Cash and cash equivalent comprises :
Unit : Baht
2017
2016
Cash
2,182.69
Deposits
- current account
761,487.11
248,600.00
- saving account
586,732,639.04 492,065,453.12
- 3 month fixed account
280,640,000.00 361,539,532.65
Total
868,136,308.84 853,853,585.77
4.2 Temporary Investment Fund
		 The amount of the remaining temporary investment fund as of December 31, 2017 was 4,912,169,423.57,
which was the 6 but not more than 12 month fixed deposit
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4.3 Receivables
Receivables consist of the non-life insurance and life insurance companies that are required to send
levies to the OIC under the Insurance Commission Notification on Criteria, Procedures, and the Levy Rate to Be
Submitted by the Non-life and Life insurance Companies to the Office of the Insurance Commission, issued on
January 22, 2008, as follows:
Unit : Baht
Receivables - non-life insurance companies
Receivables - life insurance companies
Total

2017
2016
135,835,698.57 134,576,383.08
283,124,861.97 271,752,206.95
418,960,560.54 406,328,590.03

4.4 Other receivables comprised the following:
Receivables - petty cash
Other receivables

Total

2017
306,309.21
202,914.57
509,223.78

4.5 Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses - lease of assets
Pre-paid expenses - annual car registration renewal fee
Prepaid expenses - premium cost
Total

Unit : Baht
2017
7,179,641.18
132,209.73
969,007.52
8,280,858.43

2016
954,843.90
1,788,039.07
2,742,882.97

2017
7,262,524.84
715,930.88
115,200.00
47,400.00
21,400.00
8,162,455.72

Unit : Baht
2016
49,207,650.85
598,565.24
11,294.46
49,817,510.55

4.6 Other current assets comprised the following:
Accrued bank interest receivable
Computer equipment
Accrued rental income receivable
Central office’s security deposit-Building rental fee
Provincial office’s security deposit-Building rental fee
Central office’s security deposit-telephone usage fee
Total

Unit : Baht
2016
206,185.00
410,444.93
616,629.93

55,416,878.59

227,744,089.24

66,262,196.03

84,381,367.83

Office equipment

Computers

Vehicles

Other equipment

8,320,320.00
46,501,739.78

4,660,607.36

-

14,590,710.87

1,478,237.72

6,951,863.83

8,545,000.00

1,955,000.00

Increase

56,820,524.14

273,365,542.63

27,708,334.00

49,589,622.75

96,579,801.00

6,889,054.86

End of
Beginning of
period
period
9,703,818.00
-

89,041,975.19

66,262,196.03
60,269,140.71

66,262,086.03

9,244,800.00
9,326,792.17 765,229,790.10 438,458,979.24

-

-

7,400.00 242,327,400.11 158,869,273.89

74,592.17

-

-

-

Decrease

47,983,201.61

7,317,606.05

-

22,721,507.81

2,151,942.76

14,794,813.70

997,331.29

-

Increase

51,666,978.34

111,374,614.70

7,886,386.15

End of
period
-

67,586,746.76

66,262,086.03

81,985.17 486,360,195.68

-

-

7,398.00 181,583,383.70

74,587.17

-

-

-

Decrease

Accumulated Depreciation

278,869,594.42

21,455,228.43

110.00

60,744,016.41

5,153,545.80

161,990,927.93

19,821,947.85

9,703,818.00

Land,
buildings and
equipment-net

Unit : Baht

		

As of year 2017 and 2016, the OIC has a depreciation of 47,983,201.61 baht and 50,704,445.47 baht respectively.

		 In this period, the OIC bought 39 1/10 Square Wah of land at the value of 1,955,000.00 baht and 2 story commercial row building at the value of
8,545,000.00 Baht in Mueang District, Khon Kaen Province to be used as the OIC Region 3 and Khon Kaen Provincial Office.

924,480.00
728,054,842.49

266,413,678.80

Building expansion
and renovation

Work under operation
- Computers
รวม

19,163,334.00

Beginning of
period
7,748,818.00

Buildings

Land

Type

Cost price

4.7 Land, buildings and equipment-net
		 As of December 31, 2017 Land, buildings and equipment-net comprised the following
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185,532,871.30

66,262,196.03

83,201,252.10

Computers

Vehicles

Other equipment

680,246,037.93

52,738,887.70

Office equipment

Work under operation
- Computers
รวม

265,598,678.80

Building expansion
and renovation

Beginning of
period
7,748,818.00

19,163,334.00

Type

19,017,110.00
66,778,802.31

1,285,688.91

-

42,588,675.00

3,072,328.40

815,000.00

-

-

Increase

55,416,878.59

266,413,678.80

19,163,334.00

47,153,593.51

82,733,662.31

5,930,888.16

End of
Beginning of
period
period
7,748,818.00
-

84,381,367.83

66,262,196.03
48,408,316.45

64,636,722.93

18,092,630.00
924,480.00
18,969,997.75 728,054,842.49 388,610,542.27

105,573.18

-

377,457.06 227,744,089.24 139,747,358.91

394,337.51

-

-

-

Decrease

Cost price

As of December 31, 2016 Land, buildings and equipment-net comprised the following

Buildings

Land

		

50,704,445.47

11,949,279.57

1,625,363.10

19,499,358.04

2,826,139.37

13,846,138.69

958,166.70

-

Increase

49,589,622.75

96,579,801.00

6,889,054.86

End of
period
-

60,269,140.71

66,262,086.03

856,008.50 438,458,979.24

88,455.31

-

377,443.06 158,869,273.89

390,110.13

-

-

-

Decrease

Accumulated Depreciation

924,480.00
289,595,863.25

24,112,227.12

110.00

68,874,815.35

5,827,255.84

169,833,877.80

12,274,279.14

7,748,818.00

Land,
buildings and
equipment-net

Unit : Baht
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15,500,000.00

4,920,120.00

System Development

Back Office system

Leasehold
-

-

-

-

Decrease

3,853,224.00
129,573,904.70

4,920,120.00

15,500,000.00

76,952,000.00

Back Office system

Leasehold

72,031,880.00

-

-

Decrease

4,920,120.00

15,500,000.00

73,606,153.89

15,499,999.00

20,946,589.00 58,757,100.00
2,939,979.00
68,594,414.00 130,788,980.00 119,694,059.70 116,039,212.59

-

-

47,647,825.00

Increase

End of
Beginning of
period
period
96,333,960.70 26,933,059.70

-

-

-

-

Decrease

11,737,221.36

1,640,045.01

-

10,097,176.35

Increase

72,031,880.00

72,031,880.00

-

-

Decrease

Accumulated Amortization

17,305,605.73

1,640,039.00

-

15,665,566.73

Increase

For the year 2017 and 2016, the OIC has amortization of 17,305,605.73 baht and 11,737,221.36 baht, respectively.

Work under operation system development 40,750,490.00
Total
181,888,625.70

15,500,000.00

System Development

Type

Cost price

55,744,553.95

3,214,318.90

15,499,999.00

End of
Beginning of
period
period
105,300,560.70 37,030,236.05

Accumulated Amortization

55,744,553.95

3,214,318.90

15,499,999.00

End of
period
37,030,236.05

73,050,159.68

4,854,357.90

15,499,999.00

End of
period
52,695,802.78

2,939,979.00
63,949,505.75

1,705,801.10

1.00

59,303,724.65

Intangible
Assets-net

Unit : Baht

3,853,224.00
56,523,745.02

65,762.10

1.00

52,604,757.92

Intangible
Assets-net

Unit : Baht

Annual Report 2017

		

913,245.00
9,879,845.00

-

-

8,966,600.00

Increase

Cost price

As of December 31, 2016 intangible assets comprised the following:

Beginning of
period
48,686,135.70

		

Work under operation system development
2,939,979.00
Total
119,694,059.70

Beginning of
period
96,333,960.70

Type

4.8 Intangible Assets-net
		 As of December 31, 2017 intangible assets comprised the following:
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4.9 Other non-current assets
Security deposit in Central Office - Building Rental Cost
Security deposit in Provincial Offices - Building Rental Cost
Security deposit in Central Office - Telephone Usage
Security deposit-Arbitrator
Total

Unit : Baht
2017
1,274,500.00
118,000.00
1,392,500.00

2016
115,200.00
1,105,900.00
21,400.00
103,000.00
1,345,500.00

2017
4,699,003.66
3,208,783.16
1,375,308.46
9,283,095.28

Unit : Baht
2016
20,000.00
1,119,504.40
5,562,330.33
366,225.93
7,068,060.66

2017
21,939,818.67
1,463,156.41
3,561,050.69
9,093,299.62
36,057,325.39

Unit : Baht
2016
17,675,414.40
1,430,403.45
4,066,687.45
14,472,799.86
37,645,305.16

4.10 Payables
Payables - Non-Life insurance fund deferred fine payments
Payables - Levy from life insurance companies
Payables - Levy from non-life insurance companies
Payables - General
Total
4.11 Accrued expenses
Contract Payment
Utility expenses
Deferred withholding tax to Revenue Department
Operating Expenses
Total

		 Total accrued service fees was 21,939,818.67 Baht. Most of the fee was for IT system management,
totaling 11,925,078.22 Baht because the OIC rented reserve space for the IT Center and hired related IT services to
support the OIC operation.
4.12 Other current liabilities
Deferred fine payment to the Comptroller General’s Department
Prepaid levy from insurance companies
Arbitral tribunal payment
Performance bond
Advanced rental fee income
Other prepaid payment received
Total

2017
15,973,805.09
5,344,580.42
68,217.25
112,065.00
21,498,667.76

Unit : Baht
2016
100,000.00
78,000.00
10,408,616.09
2,847,300.30
71,070.00
13,504,986.39
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4.13 Non-current liabilities
Income from property donation
Reserve for medical costs of terminated staff
Remuneration of service costs in the past
Other non-current liabilities
Total

2017
2,740,370.82
61,828,371.94
554,096,082.76
828,717.00
619,493,542.52
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Unit : Baht
2016
3,534,192.88
51,790,903.83
477,310,403.35
313,690.00
532,949,190.06

		 The OIC has changed its recording of donated property from original recording as assets and expenses
as a whole sum to recording as assets and liabilities under its income account to be recognized from property
donation. The said income is to be one by one recognized as income from donation according to the proportion
of depreciation of the donated property during each account period.
		 As to reserve for medical costs of retired employees, the OIC’s 9th/2010 Meeting on August 31, 2010
gave its approval for the Office to set aside its reserve for medical costs of retired employees who joined the
project by allocating 0.4% of its annual income prior to expense deduction at the end of budgetary year after
the Office of State Comptroller’s audit, whereas each member employee is to have 0.6% of his or her salary
deducted monthly to be added up to the reserve fund.
		 The OIC’s 10th/2010 Meeting on September 13, 2010 and 11th/2010 Meeting on October 2, 2010
approved, in principle, of provision of renumeration according to service costs in the past as additional reward
to those employees transferred from the Department of Insurance and the Ministry of Commerce in the amount
of 679.05 million baht (to be provided 10%/year). The renumeration has been recognized as personnel
expenditure along with the accrued renumeration according to service costs in the past. Such an expenditure
has uncertainty of payment as indicated by the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand in the budgetary year
of 2011 according to the auditor’s report dated April 11, 2012. A total amount of 23.37 million baht has been
paid so far.
		

The accrued renumeration as of December 31, 2017 consists of:

Accumulated sum
Plus Additional record
Bank deposit interest
Total sum

Unit : Baht
477,310,403.35
67,503,800.00
9,281,879.41
554,096,082.76

		 The remuneration based on service costs in the past is the payment made by OIC to the employees
upon their retirement according to the OIC’s Regulation on Remuneration according to Service Costs in the Past,
B.E. 2554 (announced on December 28, 2011 and effective as of December 28, 2011). The employees who were
entitled to receive the remuneration filed a lawsuit against the OIC to the Administrative Court, demanding the
remuneration according to the service costs in the past, together with legal interests to the Administrative Court.
The lawsuit is now under the court’s consideration. The detail is shown in the Note to Financial Statement 4.23
A. Remuneration According to Service Costs in the Past.
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4.14 Capital transferred from the Department of Insurance
On September 1, 2007, the Insurance Commission Act, B.E. 2550 became effective and the status of
the Department of Insurance was transformed to the Office of the Insurance Commission. All of the DOI’s staff,
operations, authorities, assets, liabilities, rights and obligations have been transferred to the Office of the
Insurance Commission, based on the account balance as of August 31, 2007. A committee to verify the transfer
was appointed and upon completion, the committee issued a report in 2009 which specified that all assets,
transferred from the Department of Insurance to the Office of the Insurance Commission on the date that the
DoI organizational status was transformed was correct and complete and the total capital, transferred from the
DoI was correct and identical to the received amount of capital, shown in the balance sheet, amounting
120,538,099.76 Baht.
4.15 Initial capital from the government
In 2008, the OIC received a total of 100,000,000.00 Baht budget from the government as the seed
capital for the establishment of the Office of the Insurance Commission (OIC).
4.16 Levy from Insurance companies
The Insurance Commission issued a declaration stating that insurance companies must deliver their
levy to the OIC starting from the period of 2008. Levy f rom insurance companies comprises.
Unit : Baht
2017
2016
Levy from non-life insurance companies
540,985,515.10 526,311,958.90
Levy from life insurance companies
1,045,476,432.08 1,011,540,150.66
Total
1,586,461,947.18 1,537,852,109.56
4.17 Fee Income from Insurance companies
Application fees for license examination
License issuance fees
License renewal fees
Annual fees for insurance business operations
Income from training fees
Total

Unit : Baht
2017
2016
69,706,800.00
70,324,650.00
60,130,100.00
56,893,300.00
74,744,400.00
61,242,800.00
7,264,750.00
7,131,700.00
7,028,850.00
16,326,000.00
218,874,900.00 211,918,450.00

4.18 Personnel-related Expenses:
Salaries
Levy to Thai Provident Fund
Remuneration based on servicing cost in the past
Cost of living allowance
Special allowance (Sor Por Por)

Unit : Baht
2017
605,838,208.01
83,398,212.82
67,503,800.00
17,205,439.79
190,000.00

2016
596,882,363.62
82,368,330.22
67,503,800.00
15,280,907.30
210,000.00

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)

Overtime and holiday work payments
Professional fees
Educational expenses for employees’ children
Healthcare expenses
Educational expenses for employees
Levy for medical costs of terminated staff
Allowance for employees affected by flood disaster
Premium for personal insurance
Total
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2017
2016
17,000.00
2,205,619.81
1,748,097.28
1,439,987.25
1,407,229.50
16,432,259.29
17,298,141.16
89,700.00
46,800.00
7,528,938.14
7,371,537.45
174,936.00
200,000.00
1,939,678.25
2,056,477.92
803,946,779.36 792,390,684.45

		 In 2017, the OIC had 803,946,779.36 baht as personnel expenditure. Of this amount, 67,503,800.00
baht was the remuneration based on service costs in the past which was a provisional expense and may not be
reimbursable. The OIC recognized the remuneration based on the cost in the past as personnel expense in the
same amount with the deferred remuneration based on service costs in the past.
		 A total of 174,936.00 Baht was paid for the cases that the OIC Officials passed away while being employed at the OIC. The money was paid to the family members of the passing officials out of life and group
personal accident insurance claim payment. The OIC also paid for funeral expense according to the rules and
regulations of the Office of the Insurance Commission (OIC) on Financial Assistant for the Death of OIC Official
B.E. 2552.
4.19 Operating Expenses

Office supplies - disposable
Fuel and oil
IEC materials
Other materials
Lease-Asset: Land and Buildings
Vehicle rentals
Computers rentals
Receptions and ceremonies
Meeting and seminars
Travel expenses - domestic
Travel expenses - overseas
Fee for membership of foreign insurance institutes
Consultation fees
Insurance premiums
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Audit expenses
Public relations expenses

Unit : Baht
2017
11,341,175.82
5,067,727.36
1,243,362.08
1,721,092.16
30,243,825.00
14,858,640.24
2,882,040.00
403,165.60
28,621,261.02
5,484,005.32
14,657,442.12
1,420,642.90
700,000.00
2,663,485.33
20,782,954.62
65,288,807.34
17,047,616.62

2016
10,066,465.84
4,653,419.06
1,224,580.83
1,717,431.61
18,642,346.00
10,801,092.00
2,866,196.55
322,905.89
26,000,833.52
4,628,559.76
10,901,510.82
1,336,750.00
790,000.00
2,730,618.26
20,358,683.62
62,441,666.83
700,000.00
38,428,346.01
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2017
2016
863,214.92
1,282,342.64
100,096,104.43
88,030,325.09
4,441,903.27
4,764,129.28
1,764,619.45
2,037,861.33
4,223,025.25
8,553,467.57
775,000.00
1,315,000.00
1,365,567.46
1,053,872.30
337,956,678.31 325,648,404.81

Bank service fees
Outsourcing service
Asset repair and maintenance
Taxes
Expenses - training for insurance agents/brokers
Allowances for meetings of outside persons
Miscellaneous
Total

		 Rent of properties, land and buildings, totaling 30,243,825.00 Bht in 2016. As the Treasury Department
terminated the building rental contract of all OIC provincial offices, the OIC, in 2017, had to rent new office
space for the OIC Regional and Provincial Offices.
		 The total expenses for organizing meetings and seminars was 28,621,261.02 Baht. Most of them were
organized in order to increase knowledge and working efficiency of the OIC officials. Other costs including
trainings to improve knowledge and understanding for external persons.
		 A total amount of service fees for consulting projects was 100,096,104.43 Baht including the hiring of
World Bank consultants for the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA), a project designed to help insurance
companies understand the risks they are facing and those that may occur in the future so that they can manage
the risks and capital adequacy properly.
4.20 Remuneration and Allowance for committees and sub-committees
2017
6,360,000.00
3,060,000.00
80,000.00
328,000.00
252,000.00
256,000.00
1,272,000.00
11,608,000.00

Remuneration - Insurance Commission
Meeting allowance - Insurance Commission
Meeting allowance - other committees
Meeting allowance - recruitment subcommittees
Meeting allowance - legal subcommittees
Meeting per-diem for members of Audit Committee
Meeting allowance - other subcommittees
Total
4.21 Performance Results		

Income
Expenses
Income Higher Than
Expenditure

Unit : Baht
2016
5,950,666.67
2,785,000.00
100,000.00
560,000.00
236,000.00
408,000.00
864,000.00
10,903,666.67
Unit : Baht

1,842,884,363.72
1,128,942,755.93

Increase
(decrease)
39,350,172.04
24,568,701.74

2.14
2.18

713,941,607.79

14,781,470.30

2.07

2017

2016

1,882,234,535.76
1,153,511,457.67
728,723,078.09

%
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		 In 2017, income of the OIC totaled 1,882,234,535.76 baht while expenses totaled 1,153,511,457.67
baht. Net gains increased from the previous year 14,781,470.30 baht, with net gains in 2017 and 2016 totaling
728,723,078.09 and 713,941,607.79 baht, respectively.
4.22 Re-categorization of Accounting Entry
		 An entry in the financial statement for a period ending on December 31, 2016 has been re-categorized
to make it conform to the entry in the financial statement for the period, ending on December 31, 2017 as
follows.
Current liabilities
		
Unit : Baht
Financial Statement
Creditors
Accrued expenses

Before
New Type
7,128,431.22
37,584,934.60

Activities
New Type
(60,370.56)
60,370.56

After
New Type
7,068,060.66
37,645,305.16

4.23 Lawsuit under Court Consideration
		 Those employees who retired and were entitled to receive the remuneration according to service
costs in the past according to the OIC’s Regulation on Remuneration according to Service Costs in the Past, B.E.
2554 (announced on December 28, 2011 and effective as of December 28, 2011) filed a lawsuit against the OIC,
demanding the remuneration according to the service costs in the past, legal interest and severance pay under
the Labor Law. The details are as follows.
		A. Remuneration based on service costs in the past
Amount
(Excluding tax)

Details

Case No.

1 Mr. Apirak Lengkhayan

3,225,600.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 1st and 2nd
sums plus interests for
overdue payment

Black Case
204/2556
Black Case
59/2557
Red Case
216-7/2558
Or 976-977

2 Mrs. Piyanart Sukumolchan

4,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case 7 November 2014 In the reviewing
292/2557
11 August 2016 process of the
Red Case
7 September 2016 Administrative
244/2559
Court
Or 1258/2559

3 Mrs. Suwattana Manakul

4,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 1st and 2nd
sums plus interests for
overdue payment

Black Case 20 November 2014 In the reviewing
1925/2557 28 September 2016 process of the
Red Case
27 October 2016 Administrative
1952/2559
Court
Or 1618/2559

No.

Name

Date

Notes

4 July 2013 In the reviewing
6 March 2014 process of the
1 July 2014
Administrative
28 July 2015
Court
and
20 October 2015
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		A. Remuneration based on service costs in the past
Amount
(Excluding tax)

Details

4 Mrs. Supanit Pisutthipak

2,322,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case 20 November 2014 In the reviewing
165/2557
14 September 2016 process of the
Red Case
12 October 2016 Administrative
171/2559
Court
Or 1742/2559

5 Mr. Pairat Jantarakran

3,240,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case
21/2558
Red Case
116/2559
Or 1360/2559

6 Ms. Prapaphan Kerdlamjiak

3,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case
10 March 2015 In the reviewing
580/2558
28 September 2016 process of the
Red Case
27 October 2016 Administrative
1950/2559
Court
Or 1636/2559

7 Mrs. Anchana Buranarach

3,454,841.70

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 1st and 2nd
sums plus interests for
overdue payment

Black Case
11 March 2015 In the reviewing
591/2558
28 September 2016 process of the
Red Case
27 October 2016 Administrative
1953/2559
Court
Or 1595/2559

8 Mrs. Komkai Thusaranon

4,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case
28 August 2015 In the reviewing
1572/2558 28 September 2016 process of the
Red Case
25 October 2016 Administrative
1954/2559
Court
Or 1606/2559

9 Mrs. Anongsiri Phaihang

3,510,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case 1 September 2015 In the reviewing
1583/2558
16 March 2017 process of the
Red Case
11 April 2017 Administrative
455/2560
Court
Or Ror 74/2560

10 Mrs. Sirikarn Khamsiraparb

1,241,690.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case 1 September 2015 In the reviewing
1584/2558
16 March 2017 process of the
Red Case
11 April 2017 Administrative
456/2560
Court
Or Ror 67/2560

11 Mr. Vichai Boonmee

1,872,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 2nd sums plus
interests for overdue
payment

Black Case
27 Ocotber 2015 In the reviewing
1883/2558 28 September 2016 process of the
Red Case
27 October 2016 Administrative
1955/2559
Court
Or 1766/2559

12 Ms. Chamrueng Chartsuwan

2,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past for 2nd sums plus
interests for overdue
payment

Black Case 17 November 2015 In the reviewing
2008/2558 28 September 2016 process of the
Red Case
26 October 2016 Administrative
1951/2559
Court
Or 1535/2559

No.

Name

Case No.

Date

Notes

3 March 2015 In the reviewing
31 August 2016 process of the
Administrative
Court
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Amount
(Excluding tax)

Details

13 Mr. Phadet Boonrod

4,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

14 Mr. Samrueng Waorsut

4,000,000.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case
500/2559
Red Case
2357/2560

1 April 2016
26 December 2017

15 Mr. Voranit Lertkhonsarn

2,318,400.00

Paid according to
service costs in the
past plus interests

Black Case
459/2559

21 November 2016 In the reviewing
process of
Rayong
Administrative
Court

No.

Name

Case No.

Date

Notes

Black Case
7 January 2016 In the reviewing
25/2559
1 February 2017 process of the
Red Case
27 February 2017 Administrative
157/2560
Court
Or Ror 33/2560
Dismissal

Note: No. 5 were searched from the Administrative Court Website (www.admincourt.go.th) which the Supreme
Administrative Court has already received an appeal according to the specified appeal case number. However,
since the OIC still has not received the appeal document from the Supreme Administrative Court, it did not
know the date on the appeal document.
B. Payment according to labor laws
			 The OIC Act B.E.2550 Article 19 stipulates that “OIC affairs are not under enforcement of labor
laws, labor relations laws, social security laws and compensation payment laws; however, OIC staff and employees
must gain no less benefits than those stipulated in labor laws, social security laws and compensation payment
laws.” Presently, the OIC has not yet drafted its regulation on compensation payment for employment
termination cases, and this is the reason why some of those retired staff/employees sued the OIC for compensation
payment under labor laws as follows :
Amount
(Excluding tax)

Details

Case No.

Date

Notes

1 Mr. Apirak Lengkhayan

439,979.99

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case
316/2557
Red case
294/2560

2 December 2014
30 August 2017

Dismissal

2 Mrs. Piyanart Sukumolchan

1,270,399.20

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case
2 December 2014 In the reviewing
315/2557
13 July 2017 process of the
Red case
8 August 2017 Administrative
225/2560
Court
Or Ror 255/2560

3 Mrs. Supanit Pisutthipak

876,343.00

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case
9 December 2014 In the reviewing
188/2557
8 June 2017
process of the
Red case
3 July 2017
Administrative
149/2560
Court
Or Ror 163/2560

No.

Name
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Amount
(Excluding tax)

Details

Case No.

Date

Notes

4 Mr. Pairat Jantarakran

1,203,920.00

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case
193/2557
Red case
47/2560

25 December 2014
28 February 2017

Dismissal

5 Mrs. Suwattana Manakul

449,040.60

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

6 Mr. Sa-Nguan Preechapat
No. 1
Mr. Veeravut Ngarmjitviriya
No. 2
Mr. Pinyo Boonnum
No. 3

425,100.00

Paid for severance pay Black case Bor 27 January 2015 In the reviewing
according to labor law
51/2558
24 November 2017 process of the
plus interests
Red case Bor
20 December Administrative
255/2560
2017
Court
Or Bor 4/2561

7 Mrs. Anchana Buranarach

633,688.00

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case
1088/2558
Red case
853/2560
Or Ror 145/2560

18 June 2015
23 May 2017
19 June 2017

In the reviewing
process of the
Administrative
Court

8 Ms. Prapaphan Kerdlamjiak

360,299.98

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case
1203/2558
Red case
854/2560
Or Ror 210/2560

6 July 2015
23 May 2017
13 June 2017

In the reviewing
process of the
Administrative
Court

9 Mrs. Sirikarn Khamsiraparb

931,328.00

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case 8 September 2015 In the reviewing
1621/2558
4 April 2017 process of the
Red case
1 May 2017 Administrative
621/2560
Court
Or Ror 107/2560

10 Mrs. Anongsiri Phaihang

613,864.00

Paid for severance pay
according to labor law
plus interests

Black case 8 September 2015 In the reviewing
1620/2558
23 May 2017 process of the
Red case
21 June 2017 Administrative
852/2560
Court
Or Ror 158/2560

453,420.00
990,120.00

Black case
10 March 2015 In the reviewing
579/2558
23 May 2017 process of the
Red case
19 June 2017 Administrative
851/2560
Court
Or Ror 157/2560

4.24 Approval of Financial Statement
		 This financial statement was approved for issuance by the Secretary General of the Office of Insurance
Commission on May 22, 2018.
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